


Contents
E &%

11

29

40

42

43

44

Corporate Information
NEAEH

Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management
ARESREREEBEN

Chairman’s Statement

E

Management Discussion
and Analysis
EEENWR DT

Report of the Directors

ExeRs

Corporate Governance Report
TEERRE

Independent Auditor’s Report

BB RS

Consolidated Income Statement

mEBER

Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
FEZHBER

Consolidated Balance Sheet

REEERER

Balance Sheet
EEAE

Consolidat
Change
e R B B
ated Cash Flo
=%

onsolidated Financ




Corporate Information
~AEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, JP, LLD, DH

Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (resigned on 3 January 2011)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (appointed on 3 January 2011)
Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate Directors

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (resigned on 3 January 2011)
(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)

Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit
(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

PRINCIPAL BANKERS
The Bank of East Asia, Limited
Shanghai Commercial Bank Limited

SOLICITORS
Philip K.H. Wong, Kennedy Y.H. Wong & Co.

AUDITORS
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Chan, Terence Kin Wah

REGISTERED OFFICE
Rooms 1801-1813, 18/Floor
Grandtech Centre

8 On Ping Street

Shatin, New Territories
Hong Kong

SHARE REGISTRARS AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Rooms 1712-1716, 17/Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

2 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|RE%£ 5B AT

all

EExg

BITEE
BENEE (ZF)
mEHELE
BXRTE
Rig@ses

HHTEE

=Y, 28+ - GBS - A F#L  LLD - DH

EEHS L4 (201151 A3 EHT)
ARIF & %4 (201151 AR ZE )
ARRAT 0+

BUHBITEE
2RI &
BLESE
HRRRE A

rtEE
AEIF & %4 (201151 A3 ET)
(BEHEXEZRES)
SRoTiE A
(BHFEEZRES)
FARESE
(BEm =t zRESE)

ERMRIT
REBRITERAA
LEEERITERAR

e
BERT mRAREMELM

B BLEm
ABARBEIMETMERAT]
B X B A

REAUE
BRigELLE

AR
BB

¥ AR FAT85E
Bz 1812
1801-1813%

BREBFELE
FEABPREBLEETLBRAT
BE

25 RIEBE1835

A 171

1712-1716 %



Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, aged 75, is Chairman of
the Company. After obtaining a Bachelor of Engineering
Degree (Chemical Engineering) in Canada in 1959,
he spent three years as a lecturer at the Hong Kong
Technical College until 1964 when he founded the
Company.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, aged 46, son of Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang, was appointed to the Board as an
Executive Director on 15 September 1997. He graduated
from the University of Manchester Institute of Science &
Technology in 1987 and joined the Company in the same
year. He worked as an engineer, project coordinator,
engineering manager and then general manager for
operations.

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, aged 45, son of Mr.
Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, was appointed to the Board
as a Non-Executive Director on 18 July 2001 and
re-designated as an Executive Director on 19 April
2002. He became a Deputy Executive Chairman on
19 April 2007. Mr. Wong holds a Bachelor’'s Degree
in Chemical Engineering and a Master Degree in
Economics. He is a U.S. Certified Public Accountant
(CPA), a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and
is certified in financial management (CFM). He is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Beauty
Salon Holdings Limited (Stock code: 919) and China
Sonangol Resources Enterprise Limited (Stock code:
1229), both companies whose shares are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock
Exchange”).

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, aged 48, was Alternate Director to
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman until 1 July 2008
when he was appointed to the Board as an Executive
Director. Mr. Mok joined the Company as a production
planning coordinator in 1990. He was appointed as
a production manager in 1993 and general manager
of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances
Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Since 2005, Mr. Mok
has been appointed as a member of Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in Guangzhou City,
Nansha District.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

AAEEREREEEREAN

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang, GBS, Jr, LLD, DH, aged
78, brother of Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, has been a
Director of the Company since 1973. Dr. Wong is a
consultant of a Hong Kong firm of solicitors, a Notary
Public and a China Appointed Attesting Officer.

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng, aged 41, was appointed to
the Board as a Non-Executive Director on 3 January
2011. Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of
Computer Science of Nankai University and obtained
his bachelor degree in science in July 1992. He then
obtained his master degree in Economics from Nankai
University School of Economics in July 1995. Mr.
Xiong joined China North Industries Corporation in
August 1995 and took up the post of deputy general
manager of China North Industries Xiamen Corporation
from October 1999 to November 2000. Mr. Xiong is
currently the chairman and executive director of AKM
Industrial Company Limited (Stock code: 8298) (“AKM
Industrial”), a company whose shares are listed on the
Stock Exchange. In November 2000, Mr. Xiong joined
Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd., the controlling
shareholder and a substantial shareholder (as defined in
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)) of
AKM Industrial, as assistant General Manager and was
promoted to the position of Deputy General Manager in
March 2004. He is a director of Alpha Luck Industrial
Limited, the controlling shareholder and a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of AKM
Industrial since March 2001. Mr. Xiong also serves as
a director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd.,
AKM (Suzhou) FPC Company Limited, AKM Electronic
Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited, Ever Proven
Investments Limited and Giant Rise Technology Ltd.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Ms. Li, Yinghong, aged 48, was appointed to the
Board as a Non-Executive Director of the Company
with effect from 4 July 2008. Ms. Li is an executive
director of AKM Industrial. In July 1985, she obtained her
Bachelor’s Degree in Corporate Finance and Accounting
from Jiangxi College of Finance. In May 2003, she
obtained a Master Degree in International Management
from Australia National University. From March 2001 to
April 2003, she was a director of Norinco International
Cooperation Company Limited, a company listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange in China. In June 2003,
Ms. Li joined Silver City International (Holdings) Ltd.
as a director, deputy general manager and financial
controller.

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung, aged 68, was appointed
to the Board as an Independent Non-Executive Director in
1988. He is an entrepreneur with extensive international
experience in garment manufacturing and trading. He is
the founder of the Onwel Group of Companies in 1969
and has been holding the position of executive chairman
since 1982.

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da, aged 51, was appointed as
an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
on 1994. He holds a Master's Degree in Business
Administration from the USA. He is the chairman and
managing director of Asialink Capital Limited. Prior to
that, he held senior positions with various international
financial institutions. Mr. Fan is an independent
non-executive director of Uni-President China Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 220), Chinney Alliance Group
Limited (Stock code: 385), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock code: 1205), Renhe Commercial Holdings
Company Limited (Stock code: 1387), Shanghai Industrial
Urban Development Group Ltd. (Stock code: 563) and
Hong Kong Resources Holdings Company Limited (Stock
code: 2882), all companies whose shares are listed on
the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming, aged 74, was appointed to the Board
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 2 July
2004. Currently, Mr. Ng is a non-executive director
of Dah Sing Financial Holdings Limited (Stock code:
440), a company whose shares are listed on the Stock
Exchange. He has over 40 years of experience in hire
purchase and leasing finance.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2010.

During the year of 2010, there were more consolidation
in the manufacturing industry in Hong Kong and the
PRC as overseas brands placed more emphasis on
manufacturers’ sustainability. Consequently, new original
equipment manufacturer (“OEM”) business opportunities
arise for established and financially stable manufacturers.
Being benefited from this new trend, our export OEM
business sales has experienced stable growth.

For the year ended 31 December, 2010, the Group
has net profit of HK$29,791,743, as compared to
HK$7,960,264 in the previous year. Operating profit
before changes in working capital was positive, and
cash generated from operations was HK$47,726,127.
Our cash and cash equivalents balance at the end
of 2010 was HK$161,273,936 (Our cash and cash
equivalents balance at the beginning of the year was
HK$175,402,884 and dividend paid out during the year
was HK$24,495,587). The positive operating cash flow
and substantial cash balance allow the Group to expand
its business and continue to pay out satisfactory amount
of dividend at the same time.

In 2010 the Group had held closing meeting with all
creditors of the cigarette paper business and completed
the liquidation process. The Group management can now
focus on its core business of small electrical appliances
as it exited the cigarette paper business.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2010, the
Group’s consolidated turnover was HK$966,563,582 as
compared with HK$817,000,353 in the previous year,
representing an increase of 18% in turnover.

The Group’s net profit was HK$29,791,743 representing
earnings per share of 7.38 HK cents (2009: net profit
was HK$7,960,264 and earnings per share was 2.02
HK cents).
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITIES
AND COMMITMENT

To uphold the Group’s vision and endeavor to groom
young talents for the manufacturing industry, the Group
continues to participate with the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in the “Teaching Company Scheme” under
the University-Industry Collaboration Programme of
the Innovation and Technology Fund. Fresh graduates
qualified for this program will be employed to work
at our manufacturing sites for research projects until
they complete their master’'s degrees. All these efforts
aim at providing our next generation of engineering
professionals with a better understanding, incentives,
encouragement and the necessary foundation to build
a successful professional career in the manufacturing
industry.

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the
Company, | would like to extend the Board’s appreciation
to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year.

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFNWR DN

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group remains sound. lts
current ratio was 2.57 as of 31 December 2010, as
compared with 3.43 as of 31 December 2009.

During the year, the Group’s accounts receivables
turnover stood at 64 days in year 2010, as compared
with 54 days in the previous year. The inventory turnover
increased from 48 days in year 2009 to 53 days in year
2010.

Bank balances and cash were HK$161,273,936 as of 31
December 2010 (2009: HK$175,402,884), representing
a decrease of HK$14,128,948 as compared with the
previous year, mainly due to purchase of new production
equipments and dividends payout for this year.

There are no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2010,
and the Group’s debt to equity ratio was 36% as of 31
December 2010 (2009: 24%).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31
December 2010 (2009: Nil).

As of 31 December 2010, the Group had commitments
for capital contribution to subsidiaries (authorised but not
contracted for) of HK$0 (2009: HK$46,500,000).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the share capital structure of the
Company has not been changed with details shown in
note 23 to the financial statements.

DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of 4 HK cents, making a total payout of 6 HK cents
per share for 2010 (2009: total of 4 HK cents per
share), which is subject to shareholders’ approval at the
upcoming annual general meeting. The total amount of
dividend appropriated, based on the number of shares
in issue, is HK$24,635,939 (The total amount of dividend
paid in 2009 was HK$15,767,395).

8 RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. %R & %5k 2

]

Bt BRI

AEBHESRERIFAES - H2010F12831H * &%
B &4 mERA2.57  2009F12A31H /A3.43 -

R20104 [ - AEEMEWEEFAE S 64X - HELE
F 54K - FE17EAEH 20094 H48K FFE20105F 1
53K °

R2010F12H31H R ITE B LR @B R B K
161,273,9367T * kb A F R H T & T 4 %14,128,9487C
(20094 : B%£175,402,88470) ° TERAABEELERE
MAFERE RS °

MR2010F 128310 AEBUTERITER  REBR
2010F12H31H 2 & & # %= b & A36% (20097 :
24%) o

R2010F12A831H » A% B I & 5t /A & & (20094
7)o

72010612 A31H @ JTE FHBRAR 2 EAHE (BEH4E&
1BREH) BB (20094 : B1#46,500,0007T) °

BEXRGER

AEEARFZBRGEELBES - FIERRT B REM
a3 e

RE

EEYEBRBERBRE BERBE4L - 2010F E B
BASREBE6 (2009F 1% B AT REBKAL) - ALK
B s s MEEF RS FMRERE - BB HTHR
EHE AFEREMLTEEE24,635,9397T (20094 i
BB 5 8%15,767,3957T) °



Management Discussion and Analysis

The book of transfers and register of member will be
closed from 23 May 2011 to 26 May 2011, both days
inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will
be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend,
lodging of all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must not be later than 4:30 p.m. on
20 May 2011 with the Company’s share registrars,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited,
at Rooms 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong. The final
dividend is payable on or about 8 June 2011 to members
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 26 May 2011.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group has no charges on assets as of 31 December
2010 (2009: Nil).

FUTURE PROSPECTS

During 2010, the Group developed and successfully
launched more new beauty/grooming products, including
a new line of lady shavers. During the same period,
the Group has begun cooperation with a new Asian
customer to develop new air purification and water
purification product lines. We expect to launch various
new air and water purification products during the first
half of 2011. If production and market feedback of these
new product lines are positive, we will dedicate more
resources to develop these new product lines in the
next few years.

In 2009, we began to adopt a target costing strategy
for all new products under which we define target for
new product lines, market size and market share, and
then developed a profit plan for the new product lines.
This represents a shift from cost-plus pricing model to
a market-based pricing model in order to capture more
market shares with major customers. This strategy has
performed well in 2010 and we will continue to use
similar strategies to expand our market shares.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEFNWR DN

In 2010, we spent more resources and time on building
a sustainable program with emphasis on improvement
of the developing process and continuous improvement
process in order to enhance efficiency, effectiveness and
adaptability. At the same time, we put equal emphasis
on creating a better community and environment for the
future generation by minimizing wastage and emission
of harmful substances during the manufacturing process.
Our commitment to exit the tobacco paper business and
our focus on developing environmentally friendly air and
water purification new products as well as new products
for beauty/grooming and quality lifestyle will hopefully
not only bring profits to our shareholders, but also a
better environment and positive changes to our society
in the foreseeable future.

In anticipation of the sales growth over the next few
years with continuous new product launch, our Group
again spent over HK$45 million on acquisition of new
production equipment in 2010. We will continue to
upgrade our manufacturing processes in 2011. Our
management has already started to search for new
manufacturing site suitable for future expansion, as
we expect our current manufacturing plant at Nansha,
PanYu will reach its full production capacity within the
next 3 to 5 years. We will complete our new production
site evaluation and will make a decision on the selection
of new manufacturing site as soon as possible.

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 36
Hong Kong staff members and provides them with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme and defined
contribution pension scheme. Our factory in the
People’s Republic of China employs about 450 staff
members, and workers employed directly or indirectly
range from around 3,000 to 4,000 persons during the
year. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
qualifications, experience and performance.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi.
The Group does not foresee any substantial exposure
to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of financial
instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is not
considered.
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The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31December 2010.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong
Kong and has its registered office and principal place of
business at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech
Centre, 8 On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong
Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set
out in note 14 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical
locations of the operations of the Group during the
financial year are set out in note 11 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases attributable to
the Group’s major customers and suppliers during the
financial year are as follows:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

EEOENENAEERHE2010F12A31B ILFEE 2 F
WM EIZTEREK ©

FTEEE®E
RATR—EEETETMEIH ETHAT  SMiERER

EBXGUHEER BN AL B FEHSREET L1812
1801-1813% °

EE-3 3
ARFZEIBEBRHUERAER  HEIBEBRANMS

REDITER B T IRER M 14

AEE 2 EBEHRMEEHONBR M B RRM LN -

FERFRHER

AEEZEIBHERANEFPHARERFREZRBRELE
ERzBELIMT

Percentage of
The Group’s total

TEEZEHBEIE
Sales Purchases
HEH B
The largest customer BAREP 32% N/A “IiE A
Five largest customers in aggregate AREFAR 86% N/A A3
The largest supplier A MLER N/A i B 23%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate hRHERE N/A i B 37%

None of directors (the “Directors”), their associates
or any shareholders of the Company (which to the
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in
these major customers and suppliers during the year.

REAEANRRE - BEARFES ([EF])  KE2BE
AL HREMBR BEEMAFARRFEHITRAS%IA
EE) G FEERP P ERPRHE T -
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Report of the Directors
EEERE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2010 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date
are set out in the financial statements on pages 42 to
126.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profit attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of
HK$29,791,743 (2009: profit of HK$7,960,264) have
been transferred to reserves.

An interim dividend of 2 HK cents per share was paid
on 24 August 2010 (2009: NIL). The Board recommends
the payment of a final dividend of 4 HK cents per share
(2009: 4 HK cent per share) in respect of the year ended
31 December 2010.

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to HK$7,750 (2009: HK$10,037).

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets are set out in
note 12 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company

during the year are set out in note 23(c) to the financial
statements.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the
date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man

Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang

Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (resigned on 3 January 2011)
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (appointed on 3 January 2011)
Ms. Li, Yinghong

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung

Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da

Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming

Alternate Directors:

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng (resigned on 3 January 2011)
(alternate to Mr. Huang, Zhouchang)

Mr. Zhang, Yuankun
(alternate to Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae)

Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit
(alternate to Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang)

In accordance with article 112 of the Company’s articles
of association (“Articles of Association”), Mr. Wong,
Wilson Kin Lae; Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang and Mr.
Leung, Michael Kai Hung will retire from the Board by
rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election.
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Report of the Directors
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or its subsidiaries which is
not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Non-Executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation
in accordance with the Articles of Association.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 27 to
the financial statements, no contract of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company
or any of its subsidiaries was a party, and in which a
Director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and
other associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQ”)) as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company
under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified
to the Company are as follows:

Report of the Directors
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EEREAQFAZROREERDER

M2010F 128318 » SEENAR A - MBA R REMR
BOEB (EERBHRARGE (TFHEH])) 2RO KR
R - RIBADRMKE HFIEFE3526MRE Z &R
METERCEE - SR A AR EERM Z ST

(i) Interests in issued shares (i) BITROER
Number of shares
ROHE
% of total
Issued
Personal Family Corporate Share Shares
Interests  Interests  Interests Options Total  AEHET
Az ZERE  iEER BRE & BHESE
(Note 1) (Note 6)
(1) (i76)
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae BH AR E 11,377,584 150,000 91,407,597 - 102,935,181 25.21%
(Note 2) (Note 3)
(it2) (i#3)
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man HRELE 7,668,448 - - 6,800,000 14,468,448 3.67%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin & # %4 9,417,972 - - 3,800,000 13,217,972 3.28%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing RRELE - - - 6,800,000 6,800,000 1.73%
Non-Executive Directors FHiTEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BN TET - 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 10.13%
(Note 4) (Note 5)
(it4) (i5)
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang HEELE - - - 3,250,000 3,250,000 0.79%
Ms. Li, Yinghong izt - - - 3,250,000 3,250,000 0.83%
Independent Non-Executive — EUHHTEE
Directors
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 2%+ 3,694,300 - - 693,800 4,388,100 1.11%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlELE 644,300 - - 693,800 1,338,100 0.34%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming mRELE 1,023,800 - - - 1,023,800 0.25%
Alternate Directors REZ
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng S - - - 750,000 750,000 0.19%
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRAELE - - - 750,000 750,000 0.19%
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun R 900,000 - - 930,000 1,830,000 0.45%
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i) Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:
(1) The shares are registered under the names of the

Directors who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2) Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, spouse of Mr. Wong, Wilson
Kin Lae, is the beneficial shareholder.

(3) Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the beneficial shareholder
of 91.7% of the issued share capital of Broadbridge
Enterprises Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, which
owned 13,525,837 and 77,881,760 shares respectively
in the Company as at 31 December 2010.

(4) Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertrude Kwok Cheung, spouse of Dr.
Wong, Philip Kin Hang, is the beneficial shareholder.

(5) Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the beneficial shareholder
of 50% of the issued capital of Ho Kit Man Inc. and
Sunnydale Enterprises Holdings Ltd., which owned
35,669,688 and 86,000 shares in the Company
respectively as at 31 December 2010.

(6) Share options are granted to the Directors under the
Share Option Scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by the
shareholders at the extraordinary general meeting on
6 June 2003, details of which are set out in the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” below.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares.

(ii) Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed
“Share Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or
any of their spouses or children under eighteen years
of age has interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company,
or any of its holding Company, subsidiaries or other
associated corporations, as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Companies.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the
Scheme approved by shareholders of the Company
at the extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003.
Details of the Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i)  Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shareholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i) Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iiiy (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or
representative of, or

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder or a
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme,
shall include any company
controlled by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above
classes of persons
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of 60,267,600 ordinary shares and
ordinary shares 14.64% of the issued share
available for capital
issue and the
percentage

of the issued
share capital
that it represents
as at the date

of the annual

report

Maximum 1% of the aggregate number of
entitlement of ordinary shares in issue in any
each participant 12-month period up to the date

of grant

Period within Within a maximum period of 10
which the years commencing from the date
securities must of grant of such options
be taken up
under an option

Minimum period Not applicable
for which an
option must be
held before
it can be
exercised

Amount payable HK$1.00 for each lot of share
on acceptance options granted
of the option

Period within 21 days from the date of the offer

which payments
must be made
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Basis of
determining the
exercise price

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(ii) the average closing price of
the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer
of the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than
the nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain
in force until 5 June 2013
unless otherwise terminated in
accordance with the terms of the
Scheme

The remaining life
of the Scheme

As at 31 December 2010, the Directors, employees and
other participants had the following interests in options
to subscribe for shares of the Company (market value
per share at 31 December 2010 was HK$0.89) which
were granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot
of options under the Scheme. The options are unlisted.
Each option gives the holder the right to subscribe for
one ordinary share of the Company with nominal value
at HK$0.50.

Report of the Directors
EEERE

BRESE (8
EETREZEE NUTIMERZEEE : ()VEHB
PR B A 2 W (B g(ii) B BE R
P BRIsEE X B 2 FHKRH
(B - HESREEE ZTEETHER
FRERREE

eI Z B BRIFFERT &I 2 RN T R LE - &R

HEER B ME2013F6 A5H

MR2010F12H31H ' EF - EE X EMSHEA TRER
BERHEBN TR  ZSEREDRBEBRESSINEH
BREREVBLEL  IUREBARQRRS (12010612
A31BA®BlRMER0.89FT) - BEREWE LT - BHE
IEHER T8 ARFRE—RAQFSREES0E T
LR o

Annual Report 2010 3§ 19




Report of the Directors
EEERE

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) B ERTE (8

No. of options Warket

5 i
value
BERSE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January During During during At the Period During of grant
2010 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise  of options*
20105 RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price  RERE

1818 Rz i Bz HAR{THEZ  Dategranted  BRETTHE pershare REAHZ

&% BREEE BRERE BREHE BREZE RLAH ped- - SROEE  SRTE
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Directors
B2
Executive Directors:
HiTEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae 3,800,088 (3,800,088) - 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EER b 200856F308 29 June 2018
2008F6 4308 %
201867298
3,001,488 (3,001,488) - 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2009510 A6H %
2019510450
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man 3,800,000 - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
ERGSAE 20086308 29 June 2018
200864308
2018565297
3,000,000 - 3,000,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009F10A6H 5 October 2019
2009610765 %
201910458
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin 3,800,000 - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EXERE 20086308 29 June 2018
2008464306 E
2018%6A298
3,000,000 (3,000,000) - 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510 A6H 5 October 2019
2009510A6HZ
201910 A58
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing 3,800,000 - 3,800,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
Rggis 2008567307 29 June 2018
200864300
201846 729H
3,000,000 - 3,000,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
200910766 %
201910450
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRESTE (8)
No. of options el
: value
BERSE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January During During during At the Period During of grant
2010 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
120105 RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price  REBRE
1818 Ritiz it A E¥z  ERTEz Dategranted BRETTE pershare RHAHZ
&% BREHR  BREHE BREE BRERE RLAH B8 ERATEE ERWE
HK$ HK$
BT B
Non-Executive Directors:
FHITEE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang 493,000 - - - 493,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
BLTEL 200566f21A 5 June 2013
2005464218 %
201356 A5H
1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856 A30A 29 June 2018
2008564300 %
201856 429A
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009£10/6F 5 October 2019
200910A6H %
2019410458
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
EEERAE 200856 430H 29 June 2018
2008564308 %
201856298
1,500,000 - - - 1,600,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410764 5 October 2019
2009F10A6R %
2019410458
Ms. Li, Yinghong 1,750,000 - - - 1,750,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
T T L 200856 430H 29 June 2018
2008564300 %
2018564298
1,500,000 - - - 1,500,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410764 5 October 2019
2009F10A6H %
201910458
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) B ERTE (8
No. of options Wartket
: value
BRESE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January During During during At the Period During of grant
2010 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
120108 RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price  RERE
1818 Rz Fis o Bz  MARTHEZ Dategranted  BREWTE pershare RHEAHZ
&% BREHE  BREHE BREHE BREBE RLAE ZHE BRAEE  BRHE
HK$ HK$
iy by
Independent Non-Executive
Directors:
BUFHTEE -
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RRERSE 200856 430H 29 June 2018
2008564300 Z
201856298
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410764 5 October 2019
2009510460 ZE
2019£10 458
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da 393,800 - - - 393,800 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BLEEE 2008564308 29 June 2018
200856 A30F %
201856 129A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%1076H 5 October 2019
2009510760
201951058
Mr. Ng,Yiu Ming 393,800 - - (393,800) - 30June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
mRBEE 200864308 29 June 2018
2008464300 %
201856 29F
300,000 - - (300,000) - 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200951064 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZE
2019510758
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) BRAESE (&)
No. of options o
: value
BERSE per share
Held at Granted Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January During During during At the Period During of grant
2010 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
#2010 RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price  RERE
1A1A Rz Fis E¥z  ERTEz Dategranted BRETTE pershare RHAHZ
2E%  BRESE BREHE BREZE BREBE RLARE ZHH BROTEE  SRHE
HK$ HK$
iy B
Alternate Directors:
REZ
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RIEBEE 2008464308 29 June 2018
2008467300 %
2018£6429H
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200951068 5 October 2019
2009F10A6H %
2019%510A58
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit 450,000 - - - 450,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
BREMRE 200864308 29 June 2018
200856 H30F
2018%6A29A
300,000 - - - 300,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
200951064 5 October 2019
2009510460 %
2019510 A5H
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun 930,000 - - - 930,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
RTEEE 200856H30H 29 June 2018
200856 A30F %
20186 A29H
900,000 - - (900,000) - 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009510 A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
20195107458
Employees (Note 1) 552,000 - - - 552,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
E&(21) 2005F6A218 5 June 2013
200566 A21E %
201356 A5A
10,130,000 - (180,000) (185,0000 9,765,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
200856 430H 29 June 2018
2008564300 F
2018467298
15,760,000 - (700,000)  (4,730,000) 10,330,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009%10A6H 5 October 2019
2009F10A6HZ
2019610458
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) B ERTE (8
No. of options Warket
: value
RERSE per share
Held at Granted  Cancelled Exercised Outstanding at date
1 January During During during At the Period During of grant
2010 the year the year the year Year end which Options Exercise of options*
#2010 RER RER RER RER are Exercisable price  REBRE
1818 Rz it A EEz  HR{THEZ  Dategranted  BRETTHE pershare RHAHZ
&% BREMR  BREHE BREYE BRERE RLAH B8 ERATEE SRWE
HKS$ HK$
BT BT
Other eligible persons 170,000 - - - 170,000 21 June 2005 21 June 2005 to 2.425 1.736
(Note 1) 2005564218 5 June 2013
RftaERAL (Z1) 200566A218%
201356450
4,935,000 - - - 4,935,000 30 June 2008 30 June 2008 to 0.910 0.844
2008%6A30H 29 June 2018
2008567300 %
2018F6429H
4,305,000 - - (1,250,000 3,055,000 6 October 2009 6 October 2009 to 0.630 0.610
2009410468 5 October 2019
2009F10A6RE
2019410458
78,707,976 - (880,000) (17,560,376) 60,267,600
Notes: Htat -
(1) Subsequent to 31 December 2010, 80,000 shares and (1) 2010512 A31H # & H 1% - 80,000/% }120,000% %

120,000 shares which had been granted to employees
of the Group and other eligible persons respectively,
were cancelled as a result of termination of employment
or cessation of services rendered to the Group. Also
5,134,000 shares and 1,760,000 share which had been
granted to employees of the Group and other eligible
persons respectively were exercised.

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the
names of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

being the weighted average closing price of the
Company’s ordinary shares immediately before the
dates on which the options were granted or exercised
(as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted and
the weighted average value per option is provided in note 2(l)(ii)
and note 22 to the financial statements respectively.

Apart from disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2010 was the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by

means

of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the

Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2010, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section
336 of the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be
ascertained after reasonable enquiry by the Directors,
the following persons/entities, other than a Director,
had an interest in the shares and underlying shares
and debentures of the Company which would fall to
be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Report of the Directors
EEERE

FERRREAQA ZRORAEBERG 2 #

MR2010F12A31H AR AR 1K B 5 15 5 £33615K R
EFEZBRRELM  RESEIELAEERNEBATAMKE
B THAL/BE (TREBEES) RARARRD - 188
I REHFHPHERERBIEFGOHEXVEBE2R35 B KX
IR NGBl 2

Number of shares

RO#E
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Shareholders interests interest BHTER BERT
BEERE LEREE FEEE RABEEE ROBEDE
Substantial shareholders FERR
Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai FMEZL 150,000 91,407,597 11,377,584 102,935,181 25.21%
(Note 2) (Note 1)
(i£2) (1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Diamond-Harvest Limited 77,881,760 - - 77,881,760 19.77%
(Note 3)
(#3)
Silver Talent Development R ERBRAA - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 12.89%
Limited
Mrs. Wong Cheng, BB+ 421,000 35,755,688 3,743,000 39,919,688 10.13%
Gertrude Kwok Cheng (Note 4)
(i#4)
Ho Kit Man Inc. Ho Kit Man Inc. 35,669,688 - - 35,669,688 9.06%
(Note 5)
(i5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
(Continued)

Notes:

(1) These shares were held by Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae,
spouse of Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai, details of which
are set out in the section headed “Directors’ interests
in shares and underlying shares” above.

(2) These shares were held through Broadbridge Enterprises
Limited and Diamond-Harvest Limited, companies
beneficially owned by Ms. Sun, Amelia Kwing Hai and
her spouse, Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(3) These shares were held through Diamond-Harvest
Limited, a company controlled by Ms. Sun, Amelia
Kwing Hai and Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae.

(4) These shares were held by Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang,
spouse of Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude Kwok Cheung,
details of which are set out in the section headed
“Directors’ interest in shares and underlying shares”
above.

(5) These shares were held through Ho Kit Man Inc., a
company controlled by Mrs. Wong Cheng, Gertude
Kwok Cheung and Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent
long positions in the shares of the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and
within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date
of this annual report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

FIVE YEAR SUMMARY
A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities

of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on
pages 127 and 128 of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a
pro-rata basis to its existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
SHARES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
shares during the year ended 31 December 2010.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management
and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the business of the Group were entered into or existed
during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 December 2010,
which do not constitute connected transactions under the
Listing Rules, are disclosed in note 27 to the financial
statements.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates two defined benefit retirement
schemes which cover all of the Group’s employees,
and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 20 to the
financial statements.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the Independent
Non-Executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and considers all the Independent Non-Executive
Directors to be independent.

Report of the Directors
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EEEHRE

AUDITORS =LA

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited will retire and, being XBBBEFTAIEHAARAFTERER BRTESE
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution  FEiE{f - BEXBE B STMEHMER A AR QRZ
for the re-appointment of Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited #EIZABREEXEMNFRITZBRERAF AL -

as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the

forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board EEEEW

Wong, Wilson Kin Lae E2

Chairman B5EF

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011 HH - 201143H30H
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Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) puts great
emphasis on corporate governance by reviewing and
strengthening corporate governance measures from
time to time. The board of directors (the “Board”) of
the Company believes that shareholders can derive
maximum benefits from good corporate governance.

Throughout the period, the Company was in compliance
with the Code of Corporate Governance Practices
(the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 of The
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”),
with deviations from code provision A.4.1 of the CG
Code in respect of the service term of independent
non-executive directors.

Under code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code, non-executive
directors (including independent non-executive directors)
should be appointed for a specific term and subject to
retirement by rotation.

None of the existing Independent Non-Executive
Directors of the Company is appointed for a specific
term. This constitutes a deviation from code provision
A.4.1 of the CG Code. However, all Independent
Non-Executive Directors are subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election at the annual general meeting
of the Company in accordance with the provisions
of the Company’s articles of association (“Articles of
Association”). The Company has also received the
annual confirmation of independence from each of the
Independent Non-Executive Director and has grounds
to believe that they continue to be independent of
the Company. As such, the Company considers that
sufficient measures have been taken to ensure that
the standard of the Company’s corporate governance
practices is not lower than those required in the CG
Code.

TERERHRE
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PR RIREXERNER - ARARAESEE ([EF
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TERERHRE

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules (the “Model Code”)
as the code of conduct for securities transactions by
directors and has adopted written guidelines no less
exacting than the Model Code for application to senior
management and designated people who might have
access to price sensitive information of the Group.

Having made specific enquiry, all the Directors confirmed
that they had complied with the required standards
as set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2010.

GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference
for all committees in writing and specifies clearly the
power and responsibilities of the committees.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises four Executive Directors, three
Non-Executive Directors, and three Independent
Non-Executive Directors (and three Alternate Directors).
Each of the Non-Executive Directors is appointed for an
unspecified term. Please refer to page 13 of this annual
report for composition of the Board.

All Independent Non-Executive Directors have complied
with the requirements of the Listing Rules and have
submitted to the Company annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and
confirms that all Independent Non-Executive Directors
are independent parties as defined in the Listing Rules.
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung was appointed on 16 March
1988, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da was appointed on 12
December 1994 and Mr. Ng Yiu Ming was appointed on
2 July 2004. The appointment of Directors is not fixed for
a specified term, but, they are subject to the retirement
and re-election requirements at every annual general
meeting pursuant to the Articles of Association.
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The family relationship among the Directors is
summarized as follows:

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, Chairman and Dr. Wong,
Philip Kin Hang are brothers.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae is the father of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin and uncle of Mr. Wong, John Ying
Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit.

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is the father of Mr. Wong,
John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit and uncle
of Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man and Mr. Wong, David Ying
Kit are brothers and they are cousins of Mr. Wong,
Raymond Man Hin.

The Directors have conducted a review of the
effectiveness of the system of internal control of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least two regular meetings each
year (approximately each six months), and will convene
further meetings when necessary. When a regular Board
meeting is convened, the Board documents will be sent
to the Directors for review before the meeting pursuant
to the Listing Rules and the CG Code so that the
Directors can keep abreast of the information to perform
their duties and responsibilities. The Board convened 6
meetings in 2010.
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TERERHRE

The attendance of directors is as follows:

EEHFEBERAOT

Attendance

HE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during term of service Attendance

Director Name HESEAE Rate
EEEB EHRERRE HE=
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae (Chairman) =& 8% 4E (F/F) 6/6 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man =R A 5/6 83%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBLAE 6/6 100%
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing Sfesk A 6/6 100%
Non-Executive Directors HFHITESE
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang =R TFEL 5/6 83%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EFEHELE

(resigned on 3 January 2011) (2011F1 A3HE L) 5/6 83%
Ms Li, Yinghong FHRAT L 5/6 83%
Independent Non-Executive Directors ®EV #HTEE
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RS & 5/6 83%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da Bl ESAE 6/6 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming R % E 6/6 100%

The remuneration of Directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and the
current market conditions. No Director is allowed to
participate in determining his own remuneration. The
remuneration received by Directors from the Company
during the year is set out in Note 8 of the financial
statement. The Board has set up an independent
professional consulting procedure and upon reasonable
request, Directors are able to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances at the
Company’s expenses.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee comprises three Independent
Non-Executive Directors and one Non-Executive Director
with extensive experience in accounting or legal matters.
The audit committee was established with specific written
terms of reference, mainly responsible for reviewing the
financial statements and annual and interim reports and
accounts of the Company, submitting relevant reports
and recommendations to the Board, reviewing the
Company’s financial controls, internal control and risk
management systems and making recommendations on
the appointment and remuneration of the auditors of the
Company and any matters related to the termination of
appointment. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the audit committee and is responsible for reporting
the results and recommendations of the audit committee
to the Board after each meeting.

In 2010, the audit committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance
are as follows:

TERERHRE

EREES

BERZRBEQH3BBIUNFNTEST MBI FNTESTMAEN
SRYERTEAEELR ERR B GO KR UERE
EXrZ28EBZMARRNMBRRLRFERSFLFRE R
BB MEFSRIEARSLEBER - FEHARAZ
PATGEEHE - MERESE M AR B IR R A R AN 1 B AR BB HY
ZE FHREMEKZIZERABEERDES - RREUH#
RERBEVZEENER  AENBREZRANEFTEY
TERZEENERERIEBER

R20105F - ExZEaghEM2Rg#® - KEHFEBELN
N

Attendance

HFE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBRE Rate
REARB FHRERRH HE=R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) ML (/&) 2/2 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da SBiCELE 2/2 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming R E 2/2 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang EHERE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (201141 A3H B ) 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the audit committee during the year
included reviewing the 2009 audited financial statements
and the annual results announcement, reviewing the
interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2010
and the interim results announcement, considering the
accounting standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory
letter about audit submitted by the auditors to the
management and the response of the management, the
basis of opinion and qualified opinion (if any) made by
the auditors in their report.

ERZESCEFENAMMO T ERIEEN2009FFELD
EZUBHREARFEEERS  BEHEHZ=2010F6A308
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TERERHRE

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee comprises three
Independent Non-Executive Directors, two Executive
Directors and one Non-Executive Director. The
remuneration committee was established with specific
written terms of reference, principally responsible for
reviewing and approving remuneration plans for directors
and senior management, determining the remuneration
package of executive directors and senior management,
including benefits, pension interests and the payment of
compensation. Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung is chairman
of the remuneration committee and is responsible for
reporting the meeting results and recommendations of
the remuneration committee to the Board after each
meeting.

In 2010, the remuneration committee convened 1
meeting. Members of the remuneration committee and
their attendance are as follows:

¥yMEES

FNZBEM3BBUIRITES 2R NTEERIBIE
WITEFEAK - FNZEQCKUERBE T2 A 8 RH
FMEEERSREBABNTIIR  BERTESER
EREEENTFMTE  BENa  EReBaMEEX
- RBERERFHEREENTR  AERBRERR
AEEFEREFMEEENERERIERER

S

N2010F @ HMEER QBT UREE - B RIBEER
mF

Attendance

HFE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESBRE Rate
REERE FHRAEZRIH HE=R
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung (Chairman) 2SR E (F/F) 1/1 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLESE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming hBAxEE 11 100%
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang HHELE
(resigned on 3 January 2011) (201141 A3H B E) 11 100%
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBELE 1/1 100%
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man wmHEHLELE 11 100%

Tasks undertaken by the remuneration committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of
the Group, assessing performance of Executive
Directors, considering the salary adjustment for the
year and making recommendations to the Board. The
remuneration committee also ensures that no Director
or senior management member determines his own
remuneration.
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The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine
the remuneration of Executive Directors and senior
management based on their responsibilities, qualifications
and working performance. No Director or any of his
associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration.
The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors, employees and other eligible
participants. Details of the share option scheme are set
out in note 22 to the financial statement.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee comprises one Non-Executive
Director, namely Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (Chairman),
and three independent Non-Executive directors, namely
Mr. Leung. Michael Kai Hung, Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da
and Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming. The nomination committee is to
deal with the appointment, re-election and retirement of
Directors.

In 2010, the nomination committee convened 1 meeting.
Members of the nomination committee and their
attendance are as follows:

TERERHRE

AEENFHBRREARTEENSREEABRRETHY
BE BERTEREMEBTCEMS - REEFHEMmE
ZBALT2TREEAGHNE - ARRIRMBAEEIA
HBES EEREMAERAL - BREFSZFEC
BRI G R E22

REZEES

REZBEMIBFNTES  aHaELE (XF) 3%
BUFRTESR  RRMELE  BLERERMRALE
MK - REREGREEENRE  EEMEEINFE

R2010% - REZERLBRTUREH - REREEER
mF -

~.

Attendance

HfE

No. of meetings attended/
No. of meetings held

during the year Attendance
Member Name HESRAE Rate
REARB FHRAERRH HE=E
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang (Chairman) BEESE (£/EF)

(resigned on 3 January 2011) (201141 A3HEHT) 11 100%
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BlESE 1/1 100%
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming (appointed as AR LA (20114

Chairman on 3 January 2011) 1ASBRZAEER) 1/1 100%
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung RIS E 11 100%
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TERERHRE

ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing
the development direction of the Group, formulating
targets and business development plans, approving
major agreements and matters, and monitoring
the performances of senior management. It is also
responsible for corporate governance with a view
to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the three
general managers, the management is responsible for
implementing the strategies and plans developed by
the Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The
Board will review those arrangements on a regular basis
to ensure that the arrangements meet the needs of the
Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
GENERAL MANAGER

The chairman and the general manager (equivalent
to chief executive officer) have different roles. The
chairman is responsible for the operation of the Board
and the general managers are responsible for managing
the operations of the Group. Their functions have been
clearly divided to ensure a balanced distribution of power
and no authority will concentrate on a single individual.

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae, the chairman of the Board,
is principally responsible for leading the Board and
ensures the Board to act in the best interests of the
Company. The chairman ensures that the Board to
operate effectively and perform its proper duties and
discuss all important and proper matters in a timely
manner. The chairman is responsible for convening
Board meetings, consulting, determining and approving
the agenda of each Board meeting, and ensuring that
Directors are provided sufficient information on current
matters in a timely manner. The chairman oversees
the structure, number of members and composition of
the Board and makes recommendations to the Board
and the relevant committees on any intended changes.
The chairman is also responsible for ensuring that
the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.
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Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin, the deputy executive
chairman, an Executive Director and a general manager,
is principally responsible for the daily operation and
management of the Group’s overall operations and
implementing the Board’s operating strategy and
policy and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
the Group’s financial reporting, internal control, material
procurement and control, logistics, customs, taxes
and legal matters and compliance, coordinating close
cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of
staff and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to
ensure smooth and effective operation of the Company’s
operations and systems.

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man, an Executive Director
and a general manager, is principally responsible for
the daily operation and management of the Group’s
overall operations and implementing the Board’s
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to
all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production,
quality assurance and new product innovations,
coordinating close cooperation among all departments,
uniting efforts of staff and encouraging the initiative of
staff so as to ensure smooth and effective operation of
the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. Mok, Kin Hing, an Executive Director and a general
manager, is principally responsible for the daily operation
and management of the Group’s overall operations
and implementing the Board’s operating strategy and
policy and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives
and decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for
supervising all personnel issues at our Nansha production
facilities, all capital equipments installation and disposal,
and overseeing all employee champions programs to
optimize costs and make sure our facilities are in full
compliance with local, international and environment
laws and standards.
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TERERHRE

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or
add a new member to the Board. For nomination, the
nominee’s qualifications, capabilities and potential to
make contribution to the Company shall be taken into
consideration by the nomination committee.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in
preparing the financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by
a qualified staff and supervised by Executive Director
and general manager, Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin,
who is a U.S. certified public accountant. With the
assistance of the finance department, the Board will
ensure that the preparation of the financial statements
of the Group complies with relevant regulations and
applicable accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2010, the audit fee
was approximately HK$788,000.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by Baker
Tilly Hong Kong Limited, the auditor of the Company, in
respect of the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 40 to
41.

38  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIEE2£AB AT

all

EERE

REARBNABEIZFSR  EFSHE TR RNEM
REEZEEMARRES  NEMERZRAHIERES
EXRE  REZEQAERBIRBALZER BENEY
RRBWEERAEE N

BEKEFZ
EEHAARIAEEMHRIXEBRELT -

ARPMBHHAERBMEEE  YARTESRBLE
BEXBRELEERAR BEELRIERESEE - £F
BRI T EFTREFRAKEYBHREROEHNTEE
AR MER e LR -

BT =

H EZ2010F12A31H It FE - T B4 8%788,000
7_E °

ARRGHMABEESAMEBAARATRAEEE
BRRABERNPRETZACHNFI0EMN ANEIZ
AR EH -



Corporate Governance Report

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with
its shareholders through the annual general meeting
or other general meetings and encourages them to
participate in general meetings. Registered shareholders
of the Company receive notices of general meetings
by post. The notice of general meeting contains the
agenda, the proposed resolutions and the voting form.
All shareholders of the Company are entitled to attend
the annual general meeting and special general meetings
of the Company. Shareholders who are unable to attend
the general meeting can fill in the proxy form attached
with the notice of general meeting and return the same
to the share registrar and transfer office of the Company
so as to appoint their representatives or the chairman of
the meeting as their proxies.

TERERHRE

BERRBE
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FABRBYBBRESEBRRAE - KRB ELTHRIATE
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Independent Auditor’s Report

B % B R S

-

BAKER TILLY

HONG KONG LIMITED
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

I 7 i w5 A PR A )

12th Floor, China Merchants Tower, Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong

FEW T HED1I68-2008F Edh o HERKE2®

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO
THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

RAYMOND INDUSTRIAL LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 42
to 126, which comprise the consolidated and company
balance sheets as at 31 December 2010, and the
consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our
audit. This report is made solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of the affairs of
the Company and of the Group as at 31 December
2010 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2011

Chan Kwan Ho, Edmond
Practising certificate number P02092
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COhSO|Idated Income Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2010)

%éﬁé% (B £2010F512A31 B LLEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BA3% % 3 28 {2 )

2010 2009
Note HK$ HK$
HteF B JEE
Turnover —E 1] 4 966,563,582 817,000,353
Cost of sales SHE R A (868,858,517) (736,364,949)
Gross profit EF 97,705,065 80,635,404
Other revenue HAb A 5 1,533,831 1,046,891
Other net income H % e 5 6,607,508 837,376
Selling expenses HEZEMH (16,071,445)  (13,819,922)
General and administrative expenses  {TIE & A (52,671,205) (60,716,856)
Profit before taxation BR%5 A 3= A 6 37,103,754 7,982,893
Income tax expense FiSFis 7 (7,312,011) (22,629)
Profit for the year and 780 T IR 3R B A A 4F B R F
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 29,791,743 7,960,264
Earnings per share BRER 10
Basic, HK cents BN S (1] 7.38 2.02
Diluted, HK cents BE - B 7.25 2.02

Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are

set out in note 23(b).

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of the

consolidated financial statements.
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COHSO“dated Statement Of Compl’ehenSIve Income (for the year ended 31 December 2010)

%ééﬁﬁﬁ% (8Z£Z2010F12A31BLLEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABBREM)
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B JEH
Profit for the year REERR 29,791,743 7,960,264
Other comprehensive income FEHMEEKE :
for the year:
Exchange differences on translation BEIBIN RO TS R
of financial statements of overseas EERENEZE -
subsidiaries, net of nil tax ERIE 2 FE 8,268,694 3,083,420
Total comprehensive income AATARREGEEEZ
for the year and attributable to ZHEHKR=RAEE
equity shareholders of the Company 38,060,437 11,043,684

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of the HRFES1EEZF1268 2k RAEKIEEREMBRE L
consolidated financial statements. —&Bfa o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2010)

ﬁéﬁ%ﬁ%% (2010F12HA31H&EHE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LA % 5 B8 {2 )

2010 2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$ HK$
it B JE JE
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&%)
Non-current assets FkRBEE
Fixed assets EEEE 12
— Property, plant and equipment — W BE MERE 200,107,200 177,425,394 175,207,028
— Interests in leasehold land — BRI EHERE
held for own use under B Az i
operating leases 9,999,449 10,112,310 10,404,872
Interests in associates BN A s 13 - - -
Deferred tax assets FETIHEE 15(b) 8,378,308 6,672,459 5,727,623
218,484,957 194,210,163 191,339,523
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 125,414,189 97,556,670 88,045,302
Trade and other receivables B 5 R E A EWERTE 177 191,505,393 133,042,449 76,581,163
Tax recoverable A 3R [B] F{ 18 15(a) 1,362,910 5,409,313 7,882,898
Cash and cash equivalents Be hBESSEER 78 161,273,936 175,402,884 215,925,630
479,556,428 411,411,316 388,434,993
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and other payables B 5 N EMEMNIRIA 79 184,933,361 118,302,415 85,917,711
Dividends payable B PRB 1,392,311 1,349,632 1,519,973
186,325,672 119,652,047 87,437,684
Net current assets hEEEFEE 293,230,756 291,759,269 300,997,309
Total assets less current liabilities A& ERATEES 511,715,713 485,969,432 492,336,832
Non-current liabilities FkRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities REFREAE 15(b) 161,190 165,186 2,411,225
NET ASSETS EEFE 511,554,523 485,804,246 489,925,607
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2010)
%éﬁéﬁ%% (2010%F12A31 & &)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LU % BB )
2010 2009 2008
Note HK$ HK$ HK$
(Restated) (Restated)
(E31)) (&%)

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAREF#EE
Share capital f% 7 23(c) 205,872,630 197,092,442 196,932,442
Reserves ERE 305,681,893 288,711,804 292,993,165
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 511,554,523 485,804,246 489,925,607

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 30 March 2011.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae
= A
Director

EF

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part

consolidated financial statements.

of the

R2011F3 H30 B EE=E S it LT -

Raymond Wong Man Hin

BEXE
Director

EF

FNFESIREEF126E M REX L FHE

—&Bfp o

b
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Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2010)
ﬁ%ﬁ%% (2010F12H831H&E &)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BA3% % 3 28 {2 )

2010 2009
Note HKS$ HK$
BiaE B JE
Non-current assets ERBEE

Fixed assets ElEEE
— property, plant and equipment — Y% BENMEE 12 4,909,090 7,719,713
Investments in subsidiaries WEARIEE 14 231,356,331 231,356,331
236,265,421 239,076,044

Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 1,009,559 1,273,028
Trade and other receivables B 5N EH A EKERIE 17 169,687,507 116,756,426
Amounts due from subsidiaries FE U I B A =) BR I8 14 68,320,429 22,414,522
Tax recoverable AR B8 15(a) 5,625,679 6,541,395
Cash and cash equivalents HWeNIREZEEIEBER 18 88,097,464 124,933,994
332,740,638 271,919,365

Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R HMFEBRIE 19 123,368,976 72,327,071
Amounts due to subsidiaries el NG 14 26,761,372 25,253,075
Dividends payable TERTRR B, 1,392,311 1,349,632
151,522,659 98,929,778
Net current assets REBEEFRE 181,217,979 172,989,587
Total assets less current liabilities ZAEERGHERE 417,483,400 412,065,631

Non-current liabilities kRBEE

Deferred tax liabilities BEEFIEAE 15(b) 148,242 148,242
NET ASSETS EEZEE 417,335,158 411,917,389
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Balance Sheet (at 31 December 2010)
ﬁ%ﬁﬁ% (2010%F12A31 & &)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB BEMN)
2010 2009
Note HK$ HK$
Bz B B

CAPITAL AND RESERVES EAXR#E 23
Share capital [N 205,872,630 197,092,442
Reserves B 211,462,528 214,824,947
TOTAL EQUITY 4 RE S 417,335,158 411,917,389

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of A201143H30R EE E &b/ L IFHETE -
directors on 30 March 2011.

Wilson Wong Kin Lae Raymond Wong Man Hin
HEA EXHE

Director Director

EF EF

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of the HRFES1EEF1268 sk BEKIEIREMBRE L
consolidated financial statements. —&pn °
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COhSO|Idated Statement Of ChangeS |n EqUIty (for the year ended 31 December 2010)

%é%é%@% (B Z£2010512H831 B LtEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
PRC
statutory
Share Share  Exchange Capital Retained reserve Total
capital premium reserve reserve earnings G equity
B RAEE ERfE EARE HEER EERE AitER
Note HKS$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$
At 1 January 2009 #2009F1A1A 196,932,442 179,749,234 48,553,849 5,430,367 31,755,258 27,504,457 489,925,607
Changes in equity for 2009: 20095 ZEHZE
Appropriation to the PRC statutory reserve  FR B Gt 23(d)(iv) - - - - (350,473) 350,473 -
Dividends approved in respect EERERS
of the previous year 23(b) - - - - (19,693,244 - (19,693,244)
Shares issued under share option scheme  EREE #1721
- gross proceeds -Ehs 23(c)(ii) 160,000 41,600 - - - - 201,600
— transfer from capital reserve - mERRESY - 36,144 - (36,144) - - -
Equity-settled share-based transactions & (E MR AZRER - - - 4,448,743 - - 4,448,743
Cancellation of share options PHmARE - - - (122,144) - - (122,144)
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ AE2EWsEE - - 3083420 - 7960264 - 11,043,684
At 31 December 2009 and H2009512A318 %
1 January 2010 201051418 197,092,442 179,826,978 51,637,269 9,720,822 19,671,805 27,854,930 485,804,246
Changes in equity for 2010: 010F 2 EEEE
Appropriation to the PRC statutory reserve Eli% T H (B 25(d)(iv) - - - - (352,575) 352,575 -
Dividends approved in respect of the HERE
~ previous year ~-fF 23(b) - - - - (16,329,458) - (16,329,458)
- current year -1E 23(b) - - - - (8,166,129) - (8,166,129)
Shares issued under share option scheme  ER%IER %77 2 {7
- gross proceeds - Eh&E 23(c)(i) 8,780,188 3,508,938 - - - - 12,289,126
~ transfer from capital reserve - mERGEED - 2,088,113 - (2,088,113) - - -
Cancellation of share options HEERE = = = (103,699) - - (103,699)
Total comprehensive income for the year — RAF2EW%EE - - 8,268,694 - 29,791,743 - 38,060,437
At 31 December 2010 #2010512831A 205,872,630 185,424,029 59,905,963 7,529,010 24,615,386 28,207,505 511,554,523

The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of the ZHRES1HEZEF1268 2 RAEKILFHREPBREKZ
consolidated financial statements. — &b o

48  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIEE%£ABAT

all



COI‘ISO|Idated CaSh FIOW Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2010)

%éfﬁﬁ)ﬁéé‘:{ (8Z£Z2010F12A31BLLEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
2010 2009
Note HK$ HK$
Kzt B JBE
(Restated)
(&%)
Operating activities REEH
Profit before taxation B 55 BT S A 37,103,754 7,982,893
Adjustments for: SR
— Amortisation of interests in — G EHERSEER
leasehold land held for own Z iR
use under operating leases 6(b) 394,102 383,438
— Depreciation — e 6(b) 27,175,704 24,884,277
— Equity-settled share-based — R ENRAERIER
payment transactions (103,699) 4,326,599
— Foreign exchange loss, net — [E N FE1E 2,093,859 848,762
— Impairment loss of inventories — FEREEE 3,657,896 813,460
— Interest income — FEUA 5 (1,353,831) (806,891)
— Net loss on disposal/write-off of —E REDE  WE
property, plant and equipment M2 FEE 5&6(b) 2,105,755 240,155
Operating profit before changes EEESEHLE RN
in working capital 71,073,540 38,672,693

Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and
other receivables

M
0% 5 K R IR

(31,515,415)

(58,462,944)

(10,324,828)

(56,461,286)

Increase in trade and other payables HINE 5 & H fth fE S BRIE 66,630,946 32,384,704
Cash generated from operations REELA RS 47,726,127 4,271,283
Tax paid BIES H

Hong Kong profits tax paid EBFIER T H (2,435,386) (165,305)

Overseas tax paid SENTE S (2,367,234) (531,146)
Net cash generated from RETHELEZHSEE

operating activities 42,923,507 3,574,832
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CO”SOIldated CaSh FIOW Statement (for the year ended 31 December 2010)

%éfﬁﬁ)ﬁié‘% (=Z2010F512H31BHLEE)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BA3% % 5 28 {2 )

2010 2009
Note HK$ HK$
Kzt B JBEE
(Restated)
(&%)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the property, STAME - BB MR
plant and equipment (48,099,527) (26,232,694)
Proceeds from disposal of property, Hj%ft’ﬂ)¥ BE &
plant and equipment RAEPTIS A 454,703 706,312
Interest received FLEW A 1,353,831 806,891
Net cash used in investing RETHZHZRESFE
activities (46,290,993) (24,719,491)
Financing activities & SEE
Proceeds from shares issued under BEATERRE L (D 2 W2
share option scheme 12,289,126 201,600
Dividends paid SRR (24,452,908) (19,863,585)
Net cash used in financing MEETHTHZRESFE
activities (12,163,782) (19,661,985)
Decrease in cash and ROBRERBELEEEHE
cash equivalents (15,531,268) (40,806,644)
Cash and cash equivalents MA1BZERER
at 1 January HEEEEH 175,402,884 215,925,630
Effect of foreign exchange HNEEXSE2FE
rate changes 1,402,320 283,898
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31BZEHER
at 31 December HEZEER 18 161,273,936 175,402,884
The notes on pages 51 to 126 form part of the #HNFES1EZEF1268 2k AEKLEEHLREMIEREKZ

consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

1 COMPANY INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) is a
company incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong and
has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8
On Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements for year ended
31 December 2010 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Group”).

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. These financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised
HKFRSs that are first effective or available for early
adoption for the current accounting period of the
Group. Note 3 provides information on any changes in
accounting policies resulting from initial application of
these developments to the extent that they are relevant
to the Group for the current and prior accounting periods
reflected in these financial statements.

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period (see note 31).

A summary of significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

1 ARIEF

AMEEBEBERAR ([AAR]) REBZMKI » AR
M ERE Mk EBELHEUREBT AP BT FEEHN\GRE
Zh )+ /\1E1801-1813% °

2 FEFSFEE
(a) EHREH

HE2010F12 A B L FEZEE U B RERBIBEARRQF]
FMEKBAR (5 [AEE]) Z8KE -

WEMBRRDREMAER EEMBRE LR ([FE
MHERELEA]) &l - LARARBRERT LGNS
(TEEGEAR]) B 2 PAEERERBBHHRE
R FAGERN ([FESER) k& FER
RERARBEBRRGI 2 RBERE - LLFHBHREI
NEBBBMARIMAERRAES LMARRZERKEK
X o

BE G AGERME T MBI EEMBRELE
Al RAKERARBZE RS A ERERKA 1
RIERA - AIREREEMBERYAEERITRBESS
HEMER S RREIMRRNZEFMBHRR2E
£t BIIRHIEES ©

REBEASFEERRPNTADAREROE S SHER
Mz (RME31) -

AEBRBZEXNGTBRBMESHIIMT -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(b) Basis of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost
basis.

The preparation of these financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about
carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 30.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(c) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating policies of an entity so as to
obtain benefits from its activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are
taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from
intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is
no evidence of impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see

note 2(g)(ii)).
(d) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its management, including participation in the financial
and operating policy decisions.

An investment in an associate is accounted for in
the consolidated financial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted
thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group’s
share of the associate’s net assets and any impairment
loss (see note 2(g)(i)) relating to the investment. The
Group’s share of the post-acquisition and post-tax results
of the associates and any impairment losses for the year
are recognised in the consolidated income statement
whereas the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
post-tax items of the associates’ other comprehensive
income is recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(d) Associates (continued)

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest
in the associate, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil
and recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate. For this purpose, the Group’s interest in
the associate is the carrying amount of the investment
under the equity method together with the Group’s long-
term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its associates are eliminated
to the extent of the Group’s interest in the associate,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they
are recognised in profit or loss.

(e) Property, plant and equipment

(i) ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated
in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses (see note

2(g)(ii)).

The cost of construction in progress includes
the cost of machinery, materials, construction
expenditures and other costs directly attributable
to bringing the assets to a working condition for
its intended use.
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(iii)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e MWK

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment, less
their estimated residual value, if any, over their
estimated useful lives at the following annual
rates:

Buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the building
could be measured separately from
the fair value of the leasehold land
at the inception of the lease
(see note 2(f)(i))

Plant and machinery

Furniture, fixtures and equipment

Moulds

Motor vehicles

4.0% - 4.5% straight line

9.0% - 18.0% straight line
9.0% - 383.3% straight line
9.0% straight line

25.0% reducing balance and
18.0% straight line

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Construction in progress is not depreciated until it
is completed and ready for its intended use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the estimated net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

2

(e)
(i)

(iii)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(f) Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series
of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to
use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of
time in return for a payment or a series of payments.
Such a determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is regardless
of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a
lease.

(i) Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases, except where the land
held for own use under an operating lease, the fair value
of which cannot be measured separately from the fair
value of a building situated thereon, is accounted for as
being held under a finance lease, unless the building is
also clearly held under an operating lease. For these
purposes, the inception of the lease is the time that the
lease was first entered into by the Group, or taken over
from the previous lessee.

(i) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period
of the lease term of 50 years. Impairment losses are
recognised in accordance with accounting policy set out
in note 2(g)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities
and other receivables

Investment in equity securities (other than investments
in subsidiaries, see note 2(g)(ii)) and other current
and non current receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at each balance sheet date
to determine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value
of an investment in an equity investment below its
cost.

If any such evidence exists, any impairment loss is
determined and recognised as detailed below:

For investment in an associate recognised using the
equity method (see note 2(d)), the impairment loss is
measured by comparing the recoverable amount of
the investment as a whole with its carrying amount in
accordance with note 2(g)(ii). The impairment loss is
reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount in
accordance with note 2(g)(ii).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of investment in equity securities
and other receivables (continued)

For trade and other receivables, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where financial assets carried at amortised
cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar
past due status, and have not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment collectively are based on
historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment
loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying amount
exceeding that which would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised in prior years.

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade and other
receivables, whose recovery is considered doubtful
but not remote. In this case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded using an allowance
account. When the Group is satisfied that recovery is
remote, the amount considered irrecoverable is written
off against trade and other receivables directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account
are reversed against the allowance account. Other
changes in the allowance account and subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off directly are
recognised in profit or loss.

58  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. IR %4 A

A

2 FESITTEX®)

(9) EERME (&)
(i) Bl RERERFFERE (B)

REZREMEERRENS - REBEBRUANEEZREAE
HIPMBEERRERNE (AIRNNRERZEEERS
B2EERNE) R (RN AGEREANTE) WFEG
ARBERBEHNERTE o IRBHKRARTIRNE
BMEEEBROUNERSE - B HEEER &I R
EBRAEARE  MERNTEERESET SREE
MARRESRESREEZEEERABLUEERRRERE
BENBEBBRIBERA—RFEEE -

R EEENERRRL - MBS LR EBERERR
BREEZEMEAR  ARESEEEEBERREMD - BOZ
BERBETEENEERAERRATFELBERRE
BEREEECSHE -

BEEBRENEENEES ERBE - ERLEKRESRX
Ko E A FE Wk IR (EC AT UG (3] 14 4% 38 A B DA FE R i 3 S =2 AT
BEMEAR(E) MAERARER BRI - EEEBRT - B
BERTERZRABERR - MAK BRI E &R
RAR AR R ER - AIRATARESRENEKRE S
RRRERERTERRE  MERBRTHEBMRZE
BOEMESESRED - F 2 AT ABRBRIRERRK
B - RIAEREM B A ERED - BRERNEGESH M ZAE
B EE T E R W B R FRIE - R R AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at each balance sheet date to identify indications that
the following assets may be impaired or an impairment
loss previously recognised no longer exists or may have
decreased:

— property, plant and equipment;

— pre-paid interests in leasehold land classified as
being held under an operating lease; and

- investments in subsidiaries.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its
net selling price and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset.
Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other assets, the recoverable
amount is determined for the smallest group of assets
that generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(g) Impairment of assets (continued)
(ii) Impairment of other assets (continued)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or
loss whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs,
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect of cash-generating
units are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of assets in the unit (or group of units) on
a pro rata basis, except that the carrying value of
an asset will not be reduced below its individual
fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

- Reversals of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. A reversal
of an impairment loss is limited to the asset’s
carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(iii)  Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the Group
is required to prepare an interim financial report in
compliance with HKAS 34, Interim financial reporting, in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the
end of the interim period, the Group applies the same
impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as
it would at the end of the financial year (see notes 2(g)
(i) and (ii)).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(h) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost
formula and comprises all cost of purchases, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and
all losses of inventories are recognised as an expense
in the period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount
of any reversal of any write-down of inventories is
recognised as a reduction in the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense in the period in which the
reversal occurs.

(i) Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at
fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts (see note
2(g)(i)), except where the receivables are interest-
free loans made to related parties without any fixed
repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

(i) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair
value. Except for financial guarantee liabilities measured
in accordance with note 2(n)(i), trade and other payables
are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

2 ESTEX®)

(h)y =&

FETIRK AR #IRFEMERREETR

RATHE RIEFARAANGE - KABEAEBEK
AT RE&HFERNE ATRLE RAR AT E £ 80 H Al K
K o

""""" B FEERBEBBRET G EERMTREER
quﬁJZZlS& TTSHEMBRIGRTACA

Etﬁ’iﬁ‘éﬁ% CREFENRAERER S BB GEE
RHHRMNGIZ - FEMRER SR FERELAAERE
}%TEFE'E%E RREEMRSEBERNHRNFX - EREEE
SENHEER O EERDBNERARAXNTFERE -

(i) EZRHEMEWRRE

B H R EMBUGRIRN SR A FEERERARK  HRAIR
R SHR AN TORR RIZERRBE R (RHIEE2(0)(1)) FIfR - 1

i EWKIRBR MEEA LR EEREEER 2%
EERKHEBASEBEAZ BRI - REFBERT @ &

WORIB TH R AR R AR E B B 51 AR -

(i) EZRHEtENRE
BHREMENRIBN PR AFEEERAR - LM E

2(n)(NVZ M BERAE - NE B N H AR FRIRIR A 3
AARRBEIR Y MEBATE - HEKIBEN T ARSI

Annual Report 2010 4 61




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(k) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand and deposits with banks that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.

) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave,
contributions to defined contribution retirement plans
and the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in
the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred
and the effect would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes both in Hong Kong and The People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in Hong Kong and the PRC are members
of the retirement benefit schemes administrated by an
independent trustee in Hong Kong and organised by
the government in the PRC respectively. The Group is
required to contribute, based on a certain percentage
of payrolls, to the retirement benefit schemes to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit schemes is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit schemes are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the
balance sheet date.
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e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
) Employee benefits (continued)
(ii) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within equity. The fair value
is measured at grant date using the Black Scholes model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period, taking into
account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options
that is expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss for the year of the
review, unless the original employee expenses qualify for
recognition as an asset, with a corresponding adjustment
to the capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the
actual number of options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture
is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the capital reserve until either
the option is exercised (when it is transferred to the
share premium account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained earnings).

(m) Income tax

(i) Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax
assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, in which case it is recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EmRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2

(iii)

64

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in
respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax
losses and unused tax credits.

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred
tax liabilities, and all deferred tax assets to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profits
will be available against which the asset can be
utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits
that may support the recognition of deferred
tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences include those that will arise from the
reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable entity,
and are expected to reverse either in the same
period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a
tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can
be carried back or forward. The same criteria
are adopted when determining whether existing
taxable temporary differences support the
recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
unused tax losses and credits, that is, those
differences are taken into account if they relate to
the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period,
or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be
utilised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B RRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)
(continued)

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred
tax assets and liabilities are those temporary
differences arising from the initial recognition of
assets or liabilities that affect neither accounting
nor taxable profit (provided they are not part of a
business combination), and temporary differences
relating to investments in subsidiaries to the
extent that, in the case of taxable differences,
the Group controls the timing of the reversal
and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the case of
deductible differences, unless it is probable that
they will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner of
realisation or settlement of the carrying amount of
the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at each balance sheet date and is
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any
such reduction is reversed to the extent that it
becomes probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE R R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
Income tax (continued)

(iv)  Current tax balances and deferred tax balances,
and movements therein, are presented separately
from each other and are not offset. Current tax
assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and
deferred tax assets against deferred tax liabilities,
if the Company or the Group has the legally
enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the following
additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Company or the Group
intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on
either:

= the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities, which,
in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax
liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered, intend to
realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on
a net basis or realise and settle
simultaneously.

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities

(i) Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(i) Financial guarantees issued (continued)

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee (being the transaction price,
unless the fair value can otherwise be reliably estimated)
is initially recognised as deferred income within trade
and other payables. Where consideration is received
or receivable for the issuance of the guarantee, the
consideration is recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policies applicable to that category of asset.
Where no such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit or loss on
initial recognition of any deferred income.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2(n)(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (ii) the amount
of that claim on the Group is expected to exceed the
amount currently carried in trade and other payables
in respect of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially
recognised, less accumulated amortisation.

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company
has a legal or constructive obligation arising as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation
and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the
present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

(n) Financial guarantees issued, provisions
and contingent liabilities (continued)

(ii) Provisions and contingent liabilities (continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

(o) Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue is recognised when goods are delivered at the
customers’ premises which is taken to be the point in
time when the customer has accepted the goods and
the related risks and rewards of ownership. Revenue
excludes value added tax or other sales taxes and is
after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Rental income from operating leases

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable. Contingent rentals are recognised as income
in the accounting period in which they are earned.

(iii) ~ Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(p) Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year are
translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date.
Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the transactions dates.

The results of foreign operations are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions. Balance sheet items are translated into
Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity in the
exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
amount of the exchange differences relating to that
foreign operation is reclassified from equity to profit and
loss when the profit or loss on disposal is recognised.

(q) Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby
research findings are applied to a plan or design for the
production of new or substantially improved products
and processes, is capitalised if the product or process
is technically and commercially feasible and the Group
has sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes the
costs of materials, direct labour and an appropriate
proportion of overheads. Development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE BB RR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(r) Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if:

(i) the party has the ability, directly or indirectly
through one or more intermediaries, to control the
Group or exercise significant influence over the
Group in making financial and operating policy
decisions, or has joint control over the Group;

(i) the Group and the party are subject to common
control;

(iii)  the party is an associate of the Group or a joint
venture in which the Group is a venturer;

(iv) the party is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Group’s parent,
or a close family member of such an individual,
or is an entity under the control, joint control or
significant influence of such individuals;

(v) the party is a close family member of a party
referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control,
joint control or significant influence of such
individuals; or

(vi)  the party is a post-employment benefit plan which
is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of
any entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the
entity.

(s) Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial
statements, are identified from the financial information
provided regularly to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of allocating resources to,
and assessing the performance of, the Group’s various
lines of business and geographical locations.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)
(s) Segment reporting (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued two revised HKFRSs, a number
of amendments to HKFRSs and two new Interpretations
that are first effective for the current accounting period
of the Group and the Company. Of these, the following
developments are relevant to the Group’s consolidated
financial statements:

3 HKFRS 3 (revised), Business combinations

o HKAS 27 (revised), Consolidated and separate
financial statements

o Improvements to HKFRSs (2009)

HKFRS 3 (revised) introduces a number of changes in
the accounting for business combinations occurring since
1 January 2010. Changes affect the valuation of non-
controlling interest, the accounting for transaction costs,
the initial recognition and subsequent measurement of
a contingent consideration and business combinations
achieved in stages. HKAS 27 (revised) requires that
a change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary
(without loss of control) is accounted for as transaction
with owners in their capacity as owners. Therefore,
such transactions will no longer give rise to goodwill,
nor will they give rise to gains or losses. Furthermore,
the revised standard changes the accounting for losses
incurred by the subsidiary as well as the loss of control
of a subsidiary. These two revised standards were
applied by the Group prospectively. As there was no
transaction during the year ended 31 December 2010
in which HKFRS 3 (revised) and HKAS 27 (revised)
are applicable, the adoption of these revised standards
has no effect on the Group’s results of operations and
financial position.
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RE R R

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEREN - HUBTIIR)

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

The Improvements to HKFRSs (2009) consist of
further amendments to existing standards, including
an amendment to HKAS 17, Leases. The amendment
to HKAS 17 requires the land element of a property
lease to be classified as a finance lease rather than an
operating lease if it transfers substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership. Before amendment, HKAS 17
stated that the land element of a property lease would
normally be classified as an operating lease unless title
to the land was expected to pass to the leasee at the
end of the lease term. On adoption of the amendment,
the Group has assessed its property leases in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
and has reclassified the land element of its property
leases in Hong Kong from operating leases to finance
leases. In addition, the amortisation of the relevant land
lease premium has been reclassified to a depreciation
charge. As the adoption of the amendment applies
retrospectively, it has also resulted in reclassifications in
prior periods. The effect of these reclassifications on the
consolidated financial statements is as follows:

3 SRS (&)

EB P ImEER R SGE(2009) B IEHR A EANE —F
EF] > EREEBSHENEI7TR [HE] WEFTEA-&F
AR ERFI7TRET AR ENYEEERERENEA
Mo AERMEIRER - AETHBHRERAREEEM
FFEEME - WEFTALEMA - BAEA ST ERF 17T H
FRIET A RANN ARG REEBIAAA - TRY
FHEEN LY —REFE/EEME - RAZETAN
& AEEECHERBFTBRPEARKME (THE]) K
MEETHE YO HEEEETZMEREN LD
HEXHEESH OB AMENRE - i AN LHEER
SHBHEEHM D BAITE - HiRA MBI RRKALLE
RIARRENT

2010 2009 2008
HK$ HK$ HK$
B B JBEH
Property, plant and equipment Y- BMERREE
Increase in cost 388 AN Ak 2N 5,235,120 5,235,120 5,235,120
Increase in accumulated depreciation 112t E 1,465,832 1,361,130 1,256,428
Increase in carrying value AR E R E 3,769,288 3,873,990 3,978,692
Interests in leasehold land held for RELLHEEFEER
own use under operating leases Z T iR
Decrease in cost AR 5,235,120 5,235,120 5,235,120
Decrease in accumulated amortisation 2> 2 511 4 1,465,832 1,361,130 1,256,428
Decrease in carrying value A BRE R E 3,769,288 3,873,990 3,978,692
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B JBE
Increase in depreciation charge NI E 104,702 104,702
Decrease in amortisation of interests in KEHEREERZ
leasehold land held for own use under b A 25 £ R
operating leases (104,702) (104,702)
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r e B % 3R 3k M &

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

4 TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are the manufacture

and sale of electrical home appliances.

4 —E 2

RERE X BB EEEMIHE

RAEE -

Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied “XFEIHEHETFZHER MBI - BERIEER
to customers, net of discounts, returns and value added  SCE i EHEF o
tax or other sales taxes.
5 OTHER REVENUE AND NET INCOME 5 H AR F Rz
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Other revenue Hapug A
Bank interest income IRITH B UA 1,353,831 806,891
Rentals receivable from operating leases #&:@EM 4 2 AEWKA
(note 27(b)) (H1a£27(b)) 180,000 240,000
1,533,831 1,046,891
Other net income HfhF i
Gain on disposal of scrap materials HE RTINS 1,733,069 711,888
Net exchange gain/(loss) bE N Pk a  (E518) 860,569 (282,322)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEWE  BEK
plant and equipment R FER (930,472) (240,155)
Refund of contributions to defined TEREH IR RET 2R
contribution retirement plans 2,582,754 —
Sample sales income AR YA 588,065 42,162
Subsidy income B A 766,054 422,304
Sundry income Hinlgzs 1,007,469 183,499
6,607,508 837,376
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(REEEREN - HUBTIIR)

6 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

Profit before taxation is arrived after charging/(crediting):

6 BR B2 A %

BRBLATE R VR (FEA) OB IREEE -

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
(a) Staff costs (a) EERA
Salaries, wages and other benefits Fe  LENMKEMET 126,688,809 113,543,074
Discretionary bonuses )15 3 BLAEAT 1,521,500 864,310
Contributions to defined contribution R FUR R 2 X
retirement plans 11,210,801 10,724,652
Equity-settled share-based payment R ENRAERIER
transactions* (103,699) 3,829,634
139,317,411 128,961,670

For the year ended 31 December 2010, certain
share options previously granted to employees were
forfeited and the fair value of share options forfeited,
being HK$103,699, has been written back to profit
and loss. For the year ended 31 December 2009,
the Group recognised the fair values of equity-
settled share-based payment transactions amounting
to HK$4,326,599 in profit and loss, of which
HK$3,829,634 was included in staff costs as the share
options were granted to the Group’ s employees
(including the directors).

* HZ2010F12A31HILFE  SEEBERFTEF AR
LATEIR T 8 T Ay 2019 B8 ARAE T )R U B AR A R R UK BB R e 2
AT EERB%103,6997T ° & £2009512 A31H [FF
B SEEBEERPCERESENRAERER 2AF
BB & 514,326,599 T + H F #%3,829,634 L% T &
EES (BEESE) CERBECBIEEREEKRARA -

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B B
(Restated)
(&%)
(b) Other items (b) HIEH
Cost of inventories sold* SHEFE A 868,858,517 736,364,949
Amortisation of interests in leasehold B ETHEREA B
land held for own use under Z tihiEEs
operating leases 394,102 383,438
Depreciation e 27,175,704 24,884,277
Auditors’ remuneration =% HEH BN < 842,000 805,000
Product development costs EmEREKA 698,657 408,237
Loss on write-off of property, Y - BB KR EREEEE
plant and equipment 1,175,283 =

# Cost of inventories includes HK$141,695,986 (2009: *

HK$117,946,061) relating to staff costs, depreciation
and loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment,
which amounts are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above or in note 6(a) for
each of these types of expenses.
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INCOME STATEMENT

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 MEBBRRZMENR

(a)  Taxation in the consolidated income statement (a) REAEBEHEEXREHZFHAE

represents:
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax AEAFE — FBAER
Provision for the year (note 15(a)) NERME (Kt 15(a)) 3,381,738 105,055
Under-provision in respect of prior years 7+ 4E E #&:E - 1,702,900
3,381,738 1,807,955
Current tax — PRC Enterprise REEHRIE — FELERBH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 15(a)) RERAE (K1t 15(a)) 5,453,222 1,358,988
Under-provision in respect of prior years {FEE R EiE > 14,062 3,093
5,467,284 1,362,081
Deferred tax (note 15(b)(i)) EEBIE (f1aL15(b)(i))
Origination and reversal of temporary RIETIAE B = 2oV E & R E D
differences (1,537,011) (1,206,212)
Over-provision in respect of prior years & 4[5 & & ¥t - (1,941,195)
(1,537,011)  (3,147,407)
Income tax expense FER = E 7,312,011 22,629

()  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) BB ST TR R AN F 2 b 5 FE AR B & F AR B 2
is calculated at 16.5% (2009: 16.5%) of the 16.5% (20094F : 16.5%) Fefs Al o
estimated assessable profits for the year.
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7

(a)

(if)

76

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

Taxation in the consolidated income statement
represents: (continued)

Taxation for subsidiaries outside Hong Kong is
charged at the appropriate current rate of taxation
ruling at the relevant tax jurisdictions.

Two subsidiaries in the PRC have been entitled
to preferential tax treatments in the PRC. Upon
the implementation of the Enterprise Income Tax
Law of the PRC on 1 January 2008, a five-year
transitional period had been granted to entities
that previously enjoyed the preferential tax rate
of 15%, over which the tax rate will gradually
be increased to the standard rate of 25%. The
applicable rates for these two subsidiaries in the
PRC for 2010 are 22% and 22% (2009: 10% and
20%) respectively.

The change in the carrying amount of the deferred
tax assets and liabilities, as a result of the change
in tax rate, is recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|EXEXBRAF]
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(a)

(i)

mEBBERZMEH (&)

B A2 B 2 R BB 1A B S R RS 0 2
AR -

EHERERNB AR ZAFHFEESR - BHE
ARHFBE B EMSH CGhFE) R2008F1H1H
ERE - RFTEERBIZB15%EERE 2 RNE
B BB AR ZARTKAFERGSERA #EES
FEREREEEEMER - HEKARSIZER
K25% o BB A A 20104 H & B F K 5 Bl
5322% [22% (20094 : 10%520%) °

AMEXEHEIEENREERABE L REEHR
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INCOME STATEMENT (continued)

(b)  Reconciliation between income tax expense and  (b)  IZFH K

accounting profit at the applicable tax rates:

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 7 REBRRERZAEH (#)

BMEHH REgFad

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Profit before taxation I B BT a1 37,103,754 7,982,893
Notional tax on profit before taxation, LA EE AR RE
calculated at the rates applicable to Z BB AN B E I
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 7,104,107 1,118,450
Tax effect of non-taxable income IEFERBHE WA 2 TR & (140,965) (489,001)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses A 2 B Is s & 924,733 2,387,505
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RIERARBHRISETE
recognised 2SR 2 92 92
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses RIER AT A AR &8
previously not recognised g (172,431) (2,605,321)
Under/(over)-provisions in respect of EFEEFRERLY (FH)
prior years, net 14,062 (235,202)
Effect of changes in tax rates MERE 2 B2 (370,906) (157,087)
Effect of temporary differences not KRR ERER J &
recognised (46,426) 16,875
Others Efb (255) (13,682)
Actual tax expense ERHIAS H 7,312,011 22,629

Annual Report 2010 77




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e B R R MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTHIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

8

EEME

EEMeREFBLAERPIE161GBENT

follows:
Salaries, Share-based
allowances payments
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement (note)
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme & 2010
fees  He o 2 BERK contributions  Sub-total EfER Total
e KA 2B BASEF it i) it
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B Vi B¥ Vi Vi B BE
Chairman I
Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae REHEE 120,000 15,700 50,000 - 185,700 - 185,700
Executive directors YiEs
Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BRELE 140,000 2,644,558 144,000 144000 3,072,558 - 3,072,558
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BXELE 140,000 2,055,700 204,000 108,000 2,507,700 - 2,507,700
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing ERASE 120,000 1,149,500 114,000 51,000 1,434,500 - 1,434,500
Non-executive directors FUTES
Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BYTRT 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang BEALE 160,000 - - - 160,000 - 160,000
Ms. Li, Yinghong =\ 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
Independent non-executive directors BUEHTES
Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung REERE 160,000 - - - 160,000 - 160,000
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 160,000 - - - 160,000 - 160,000
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming LRHLE 160,000 - - - 160,000 - 160,000
Alternate directors REZE
Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng FRIEB% & = = = = = = -
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RTAEE - 151,370 12,467 - 163,837 - 163,837
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit BRESE - - - - - - -
1,400,000 6,016,828 524 467 303,000 8,244,295 = 8,244,295

78  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|R& %4 A7



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR R M

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHREBHEN - UBTIIR)

8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8 EEME (%)

(continued)

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section EEWEBEBERAIEHIE1615HFELT ¢
161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as

follows:
Salaries, Share-based
allowances payments
and benefits ~ Discretionary ~ Retirement (note)

Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme A 2009
fees  ¥& 2R BE%H  contributions Sub-total ERIER Total
ik Rgh AL RIRHER it (Hiz) it
HK$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HKS$ HK$

Chairman IR

Mr. Wong, Wilson Kin Lae B4flnk 120,000 10,700 25,000 - 155,700 339,021 494,721
Executive directors HEs

Mr. Wong, John Ying Man BARLE 140,000 2,657,961 120,000 144,000 3,061,961 338,853 3,400,814
Mr. Wong, Raymond Man Hin BEXBEE 140,000 2,050,700 135,000 108,000 2,433,700 338,853 2,772,553
Mr. Mok, Kin Hing ERArt 120,000 1,044,500 100,000 46,000 1,310,500 338,853 1,649,353
Non-executive directors FHTES

Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang BETRL 120,000 - - - 120,000 169,427 289,427
Mr. Huang, Zhouchang RHEEE 160,000 - - - 160,000 169,427 329,427
Ms. Li, Yinghong IR 120,000 - - - 120,000 169,427 289,427
Independent non-executive directors BIFHTES

Mr. Leung, Michael Kai Hung DRERE 160,000 - - - 160,000 33,885 193,885
Mr. Fan, Anthony Ren Da BLELE 160,000 - - - 160,000 33,885 193,885
Mr. Ng, Yiu Ming RRBEE 160,000 - - - 160,000 33,885 193,885
Alternate directors RES

Mr. Xiong, Zhengfeng REBLE - - - - - 33,885 33,885
Mr. Zhang, Yuankun RTHEE - 146,922 4,851 - 151,773 101,656 253,429
Mr. Wong, David Ying Kit EEY S - - - - - 33,885 33,885

1,400,000 5,910,783 384,851 298,000 7,993,634 2,134,942 10,128,576
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8 DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(continued)
Note: These represent the estimated value of share options
granted to the directors under the Company’s share
option scheme. The value of these share options is
measured according to the Group’s accounting policies
for share-based payment transactions as set out in
note 2(l)(ii) and, in accordance with that policy, includes
adjustments to reverse amounts accrued in previous
years where grants of equity instruments are forfeited.

The details of these benefits in kind, including the
principal terms and number of options granted, are
disclosed under the paragraph “Share option scheme”
in the directors’ report and note 22.

9 INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
three (2009: three) are directors whose emoluments are
disclosed in note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the other two (2009: two) individuals are
as follows:

8 BEEMS ()

Hiat - EU2FIRBEAREZ BREA IR TERE ZBREN
e - BREEERREASENGHBERD URARE
fEIR B BN H EE2() (i) R IR R R B - YEBREER

T AR @2 fERTHE

BHFE  BEIZ2HIIRBRERTRE  £EFTRS
E PR BUER 8 K KT iE 22 5 -

9 fEiZEFMAL

K& BE50 & & 5 B A £ & 8 3E3AL (20094 : 3fz) &
FHEZHME BN ES & T2 (20094 : 2i7)
BReHALZBESTIT ¢

2010 2009

HK$ HK$

B JEM

Salaries and other emoluments 4 N H fth 3 B 1,139,730 1,128,929
Discretionary bonuses )15 B HRAEAL 111,600 102,300
Retirement scheme contributions BARESHI 79,200 75,600
Share-based payments IRAEMEIEE = 79,066
1,330,530 1,385,895

The emoluments of the two (2009: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
band:

18 B1) 5 /= 37 B A =247 (20094 : 2fi1) Bl & 48 Bl o 47 &0
™

Number of individuals

A
2010 2009
HK$ Nil — HK$1,000,000 BB Z T % % %1,000,0007T 2 2
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10 EARNINGS PER SHARE 10 BERER

(@)  The calculation of basic earnings per share is (a) SREARFZAERAARRREEMLLE
based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity ¥ 7% & F| & #29,791,7437T (20094F : & *&
shareholders of the Company of HK$29,791,743 7,960,2647T) RIBIEF A 2 B BTN THRE
(2009: HK$7,960,264) and the weighted average 403,893,202 (20094 : 393,882,857) & i fi% &t
number of 403,893,202 (2009: 393,882,857) "o

ordinary shares in issue during the year,
calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EERMEFLIGRE
2010 2009
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January M1A1BE &7 2 ERR 394,184,884 393,864,884
Effect of share options exercised TEBRE 2
(note 23(c)(ii)) (H1a£23(c)(ii) 9,708,318 17,973
Weighted average number of M12A31 8 2 Ei@Ak
ordinary shares at 31 December DN 35 RE &L 403,893,202 393,882,857

(b)  The calculation of diluted earnings per share is (b) BEREFERF ZFERARRTRREIHLCE X

based on the profit attributable to ordinary equity i £l 75 #629,791,7437T (20094 : & %7,960,264
shareholders of the Company of HK$29,791,743 7o) K N #E F 35 AR £0411,0385,999 (20094 :
(2009: HK$7,960,264) and the weighted average 394,663,198) LiMRETH ©

number of 411,035,999 (2009: 394,663,198)
ordinary shares, calculated as:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares EBERMETIIRE (8F)
(diluted)
2010 2009
Weighted average number of ordinary W12 4318 2 B
shares at 31 December 2 INAE T R 2K 403,893,202 393,882,857
Effect of deemed issue of shares under  1RIEARRQ FIREIRIET 2
the Company’s share option scheme NERBRIEBTRD ZFE
for nil consideration (note 22) (B1zt22) 7,142,797 780,341
Weighted average number or ordinary W12 A31H Z2 & @ik
shares (diluted) at 31 December 2 INRETF R E (H8) 411,035,999 394,663,198
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture
and sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner
consistent with the way in which information is reported
internally to the Group’s senior management for the
purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment, the Group has identified five reportable
segments on a geographical basis: Japan, United States,
the PRC, Europe and rest of the world. The electrical
home appliances are manufactured in the Group’s
manufacturing facilities located in the PRC. The “rest
of the world” segment covers sales of electrical home
appliances to customers in Australia, Canada and Hong
Kong.

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
senior executive management monitors the results,
assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following bases:

Segment assets included all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of interests in associates and
tax balances. Segment liabilities included trade creditors,
accrued charges and other payables, with the exception
of tax balances and dividends payable, attributable to
the manufacture and sale activities of the individual
segments.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
or which otherwise arise from other revenue and net
income, and the depreciation and amortisation of assets
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit
is “adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before
interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation”. To
arrive at adjusted EBITDA, the Group’s earnings are
further adjusted for items not specifically attributed
to individual segments, such as other head office or
corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest
income and expense from cash balances managed
directly by the segments, depreciation and amortisation
and additions to non-current segment assets used by
the segments in their operations. Inter-segment sales
are priced with reference to prices charged to external
parties for similar orders.
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11

SEGMENT REPORTING (continued)
(@) Segment results, assets and liabilities
(continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments
as provided to the Group’s most senior executive
management for the purposes of resource allocation
and assessment of segment performance for the year
is set out below.

ZEEHE (80

(a) oHEE -BERAEE (B

FRRHTASBESESETREEASBUDEERLE
DEERBAZEMEIIN T -

Electrical home appliances

FHEE
United States The PRC Japan Europe Rest of the world Total
%H HE A% tREH Ch
2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$000  HK$'000 ~ HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETT  BETr  AETn BETr BEFn BEFr BETn BETr BEFn EEFr BEFn BETr
Revenue HoHzR
from external ~ ZMA
customers 355,603 278,896 18,439 22,010 301,658 323,315 201,801 137,603 89,063 55,176 966,564 817,000
Inter-segment 714 2
revenue 0N = = 610,849 486,051 = = = = 898,979 694,035 1,509,828 1,180,086
Reportable "
segment AEBA
revenue 355,603 278,896 629,288 508,061 301,658 323,315 201,801 137,603 988,042 749211 2,476,392 1,997,086
Reportable T
segment A&
profit (BHE
(adjusted EBITDA)
EBITDA) 20,799 11,287 1,079 871 17,643 11,260 11,803 5,748 224,029 171,272 275,353 200,388
Reportable  W#%
segment AEEE
assets - - 431,94 379,691 - - - - 396,133 306,657 828,097 686,348
Additionsto ~ AFFH
non-current  EHA
segment BEEM
assets
during the year - = 46,862 25,675 - = - = 1,238 558 48,100 26,233
Reportable T
segment Pkt
liabilities (247) (245)  (132,487)  (101,558) = = = - (191997) (109,307) (324731)  (211,110)
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11  SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11 S8F®/E (@)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) AHEIHUA - BF - EEREBEBEZHE
revenue, profit or loss, assets and
liabilities

2010 2009
HK$°’000 HK$’000
BT BT

Revenue WA
Reportable segment revenue AR o =P UL A 2,476,392 1,997,086
Elimination of inter-segment revenue NEB 5 2B UL A K 55 (1,509,828) (1,180,086)
Consolidated turnover AR ER 966,564 817,000
2010 2009
HK$°’000 HK$’000
BT JBMETF T

Profit = F
Reportable segment profit BE: &yl 275,353 200,388
Elimination of inter-segment profits RER 5 B 4K 85 (218,820) (169,021)

Reporting segment profit derived from MAREBEINEF 2

Group’s external customers A RS o B ) 56,533 31,367
Other revenue and net income E b g A K5 e 8,141 1,884
Depreciation and amortisation I E R (27,570) (25,268)
Consolidated profit before taxation SEEBEANE R 37,104 7,983
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11 SEGMENT REPORTING (continued) 11

2 EEE (41

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) HAHEITBWA GF - - EEREBBEZHER (B)

revenue, profit or loss, assets and

liabilities (continued)

2010 2009
HK$°’000 HK$’000
BT T B F T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIFREDEHEE 828,097 686,348
Elimination of inter-segment receivables REB 5 3B FE U BR TR 3K (139,797) (92,808)
688,300 593,540
Tax recoverable AR [E R IR 1,363 5,409
Deferred tax assets RIEF A E B 8,378 6,672
Consolidated total assets MEREE 698,041 605,621
Liabilities =N
Reportable segment liabilities ASRESHaE (324,731) (211,110)
Elimination of inter-segment payables A58 5 B FE 1 BR IR 54 139,797 92,808
(184,934) (118,302)
Dividends payable FERH AR B (1,392) (1,350)
Deferred tax liabilities EEBIBAE (161) (165)
Consolidated total liabilities RERAaE (186,487) (119,817)

(c) Major customers

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted

(c) FEEF

RETBEPHABZWA - BEP DAL A A10% A

to 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: AT

2010 2009

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BB TFT

Customer A ZEA 309,251 323,920
Customer B ZFEB 185,485 162,258
Customer C =ZEC 183,942 129,022
Customer D 25D 122,182 52,829
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12 FIXED ASSETS 12 BEEEE
(a) The Group (a) F&KEH
Interests
Interests in leasehold
in leasehold land held
and held for for own
own use use under
under finance Buildings Furniture, operating
leases held for fixtures and leases Total
Construction BHHE ownuse  Plantand equipment Motor BEHE  fived assets
in progress KtER BEER  machinery  HAoZE Moulds vehicles  Sub-total BHEER Rz
KEIR  2ihEg BEN  BRRER kit 1# AE Nt ZiHEE EEAi
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HKS§ HK$ HKS§ HK$ HKS§
(Restated) (Restated)
(25) (E31)
Cost: R
At 1 January 2009 (Restated) 200951718
(1) 2,916,020 5235120 178,113,123 153,691,505 32,616,651 486,590 9328949 382,387,958 15,251,377 397,639,335
Exchange adjustments SRR 25,469 = 1,310,088 816,004 408,384 3,542 56,129 2,619,616 133,206 2,752,822
Additions # 18,340,936 - - 3,104,300 3,626,237 - 1,161,221 26,232,694 - 2623269
Transfers &7 (15,874,821) - - 14797119 1,077,702 - - - - -
Disposalsfrie of e /95 - - - [4785TE)  (1,015:899) - (6 (6242%0) - (6242%0)
Reclassification EE ] - - 175,289 (1,204,991) 1,767,903 (490,132) 9,428 257,497 - 257,497
At 31 December 2009 (Restated) 742009
128318
(Z51) 5,407,604 5235120 179,598,500 166,418,222 38,480,984 - 10,083,105 405,223,535 15,384,583 420,608,118
At 1 January 2010 (Restated) ~ #2010%1A1H
(E31) 5,407,604 5235120 179598500 166,418,222 38,480,984 - 10,083,105 405223535 15,384,583 420,608,118
Exchange adjustments SRR 150,395 - 4,208,162 2,986,732 1,424,876 - 196,912 8,967,077 421,873 9,394,950
Additions #m 37,394,976 - - 3,061,362 5,330,692 - 2,312,497 48,099,527 - 48,099,527
Transfers 1 (30,716,755) - - 0422560 10,294,195 - - - - -
Disposalsiwite of e /48 - - - 0T (40548%) - (2303,710)  (15,399,260) - (15,399,260)
Reclassification EEipL - - - 47,816 (47,816) - - - - -
At 31 December 2010 1420105
12A318 12,236,220 5235120 183,806,662 183,895,975 51,428,098 - 10,268,804 446,890,879  15812,456 462,703,335
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(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

12 FIXED ASSETS (continued) 12 BEEEE (#)
(a) The Group (continued) (a) FKE (&)
Interests
Interests in leasehold
in leasehold and held
and held for for own
own use use under
under finance Buildings Furniture, operating
leases held for fixtures and leases Total
Construction kg ownuse  Plantand  equipment Motor MEME  fived assets
in progress KtER BEER  machinery  HAoZE Moulds vehicles  Sub-total BHEER Rz
EBIR  ZthEE EEY  HRREE B 1# byt Nt ZiHEE EEAi
HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS§ HK$ HKS§
EE b4 BE boid BE Vi ¥ B BE BE
(Restated) (Restated)
(&51) (E5)
Accumulated amortisation itE
and depreciation: RiE:
At 1 January 2009 (Restated) 20091718
(E5]) - 1,256,428 89,819,788 91,112,096 16,927,044 383,060 7,682,514 207,180,930 4846505 212,027,435
Exchange adjustments Rhag - - 633,79 381,339 251,978 - 51,081 1,318,194 42,330 1,360,524
Charge for the year KEEHE - 104702 7197129 11474455 5508072 - 509,019 24884017 33438 25267715
Written back on disposalsiwrite off 1€ /HEER - - - (4,037,09) (873,154) - (417513)  (5,327,763) - (5,327,769)
Reclassfication EA - - (175289 1,204, (B947H1)  (383060) (0428)  (25749) - (257490)
At 31 December 2009 (Restated) 120095
124318
(1) - 1,361,130 97475424 100,135,785 20,920,129 - 7905678 227,798,141 5212273 233,070,414
At 1 January 2010 (Restated) ~ #2010%1A1H
(E5) - 1,361,130 97475424 100,135,785 20,920,129 - 7905,673 227,798,141 521,213 233,070,414
Exchange adjustments ihag - - 2214138 1,326,931 938,190 - 169,377 4,648,636 146,632 4,795,268
Charge for the year REENE - 104,702 8332330 12,613,321 5,264,534 - 860817 27,175,704 394102 27,569,806
Written back on disposalsiwrite off % /SHEER = - - (7361,258)  (3,526,517) - (1951,027)  (12,838,802) - (12,838,802)
At 31 December 2010 20102
12A31A - 1,465,832 108,021,892 106,714,779 23,596,336 - 6984840 246783679  5813,007 252,596,686
Carrying value: REFE:
At 31 December 2010 120105
128318 12,236,220 3,769,268 75784770 77,181,196 27,831,762 - 3,303,964 200,107,200 9,999,449 210,106,649
At 31 December 2009 (Restated) 742009
128318
(33) 5,407,604 3,873,990 82,123,076 66,282,437 17,560,855 - 2177432 177425,3% 10,112,310 187587704
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

12 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

12 EEEE (&)

(b) The Company (b) ZAAH
Furniture,
fixtures and

Plant and equipment Motor

machinery  &f  #EB vehicles Total

EE £ &S AE &&t

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B

Cost: A
At 1 January 2009 720091 H1H 27,127,161 62,600 1,976,733 29,166,494
Additions byl - - 558,000 558,000
Disposals HE - - (467,060) (467,060)
At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H 27,127,161 62,600 2,067,673 29,257,434
At 1 January 2010 720101 A1H 27,127,161 62,600 2,067,673 29,257,434
Additions by - - 1,238,221 1,238,221
Disposals HE - - (380,000) (380,000)
At 31 December 2010 2010F12A431H 27,127,161 62,600 2,925,894 30,115,655
Accumulated depreciation: SIE :
At 1 January 2009 200951 A1H 16,707,701 44280 1,065,032 17,817,013
Charge for the year REEHE 3,769,004 4,580 359,632 4,133,216
Written back on disposals &R o) - - (412,508) (412,508)
At 31 December 2009 7200912 A31H 20,476,705 48,860 1,012,156 21,537,721
At 1 January 2010 720101 A1H 20,476,705 48,860 1,012,156 21,537,721
Charge for the year REEHE 3,350,595 4,580 533,357 3,888,532
Written back on disposals &R o) - - (219,688) (219,688)
At 31 December 2010 72010F12H31H 23,827,300 53,440 1,325,825 25,206,565
Carrying value: SRERE :
At 31 December 2010 201012 A431H 3,299,861 9,160 1,600,069 4,909,090
At 31 December 2009 A2009512 A431H 6,650,456 13,740 1,055,517 7,719,713
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

12 FIXED ASSETS (continued)

(c) The analysis of carrying value of
properties is as follows:

(BREHEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)

12 BEE&E )
(c) MEREREFEEDSHWOT :

The Group
REE
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
(Restated)
(&%)
Medium-term leases FRHEEE
— in Hong Kong — &% 13,409,372 14,299,964
— outside Hong Kong — BB AN 76,144,135 81,809,412
89,553,507 96,109,376
Representing: HARK
Buildings held for own use FIEBREED 75,784,770 82,123,076
Interests in leasehold land held for VHHERIEER
own use under finance leases 2 TS 3,769,288 3,873,990
Interests in leasehold land held for KETHERIEER
own use under operating leases 2 TS 9,999,449 10,112,310
89,553,507 96,109,376

(d) Fixed assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out a part of an office premises under
an operating lease. The lease typically runs for an initial
period of one year, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
The lease does not include any contingent rentals.

The Group’s total future minimum lease payments under
a non-cancellable operating lease are receivable as
follows:

(d) REEANZBETEERES

AEEREEHNzZRFEEE  BHOAMENF - 2IHA
BERLEEBRKEENEY - ZANTERIAEE -

7K B O AT B 2 SR TR E TR R R 2 BIE
o -

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B B
Within 1 year 1FR - 60,000
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

13 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

13 HMEQTER

The Group
REHE
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Share of net assets IS EEFE = =
The Group and the Company
REBRADT
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B JBH
Loan and interest receivable from FEURES = A R 2 B FI B

an associate - 9,438,646
Less: impairment losses B EBERE > (9,438,646)

The creditors’ voluntary liquidation of the associate,
Cheung Fung Technology (Holdings) Limited, which
held the Group’s interests in Sichuan Jinfeng Paper
Company Limited and Victory Will Limited, commenced
on 9 November 2009 and was completed on 5 October
2010.

The following are particulars of the associates as at 5
October 2010:

FEN)HLREGRARRILAERAR 2SS
NE - 2R (58) AR A RKR2009F11 H9H F 14
BEREABRESEE  WE2010F10 A58 =K °

Bt A ER2010F 10 A5 BB T ¢

Proportion of ownership interest

FERERLE
Place of incorporation Group’s Held by a

Name of associate and operation effective interest subsidiary Principal activities
Benvsn ERREE B rEEENEL WEARRE  TEXE
Cheung Fung Technology (Holdings) Limited Hong Kong 45.75% 45.75% Investment holding

(in creditors’ voluntary liquidation) i RERR
RERE (R8) ARAR (BEABRER)
Sichuan Jinfeng Paper Company Limited The PRC 27.42% 45.75% Ceased business
mIBEEEARAT HEl gREme
Victory Will Limited Hong Kong 45.75% 45.75% Investment holding
ALERAR B RERR
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEBHEN - GUBTIIR)

14 Investments in and amounts due 14 HEBATREREW ENHE QTR
i)

from/to subsidiaries

The Company

b N/N|
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
B BB
Unlisted shares, at cost FELETREG - BAAAARR 232,136,898 232,136,898
Less: impairment loss W REEE (780,567) (780,567)
231,356,331 231,356,331
Amounts due from subsidiaries R UL B /B N FBRIE 106,054,965 72,011,972
Less: impairment losses R R EE R (37,734,536)  (49,597,450)
68,320,429 22,414,522
Amounts due to subsidiaries JEASTHY BB 7 BR I8 (26,761,372)  (25,253,075)

The amounts due from/to subsidiaries are unsecured, JEUR ~JERMHEARFRELERIR - 2B RIETEEEE -

interest free and repayable on demand.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

14 Investments in and amounts due 14
from/to subsidiaries (continued)

MEARREREKR EQKE QSR

15 (%)

The following list contains only the particulars of FEAREBE XL BELRBGEZMBARGEBLOT - B
subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets 45571 » Fitsa 2 RE A L@ -

or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares held is
ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Proportion of ownership interest

EL 1 -l
Particulars of Group’s
issued and effective Held by a
Place of Place of paid up capital interest Held by the subsidiary
Name of company incorporation operation ERIRAR K&EE Company MEZR  Principal activities
NAER i REwy Ra 2wt BYER DARA BE IEEH
Good Nature Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of 100% 50% 50% Inactive
Company Limited B Bl HK$10 each Ee%x
BEERAR 2l & Rk
BiR10%T
Guangzhou Conquest The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - Manufacture and sale
Electric Company H i US$7,390,000 of electrical home
Limited (note (i)) HHER appliances
BNRIAXAES 7,390,000% 7 RERHERRES
BRAT (M)
Mass Top Corporation British Virgin Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% 100% - Property holding
Islands Bl 1REBR RENF
RERKS BiR1ET
Raymond Electric Hong Kong Hong Kong 2 shares of HK$10 100% 100% - Trading of electrical
(China) Limited B i REBR home appliances
MEEHEE (RE) BRAR BRI10ET FRERES
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% 100% - Manufacture and sale
Electrical Appliances H i US$22,380,000 of electrical home
Development Company FHER appliances
Limited (note(i)) 22,380,000 T HERBEZAER
MR (BBEY) BRER
BRAR (1)
Note: /]/75\1,\7 .
(i) The statutory financial statements of Guangzhou (i) BNEIZAERERARARME (FBEY) ERER

Conquest Electric Company Limited and Raymond
(Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development
Company Limited for the financial year ended 31
December 2010, prepared under generally accepted
accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have been

audited by EMZE @RI EHEABERA R
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEEBHEN - GUBTIIR)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET 15 REESGBRHNAESH

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet (a) EEEBRZHABH
represents:
The Group The Company
rEE b /N
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Provision for the year (note 7(a)) ANEE&HE (Hit7(a))
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BEEH 3,381,738 105,055 3,285,900 =
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax — P ERBRH 5,453,222 1,358,988 = =

8,834,960 1,464,043 3,285,900 =

Provisional tax paid B
— Hong Kong Profits Tax — BBMER (2,537,945) (144,907)  (2,432,891) -
— PRC Enterprise Income Tax  — hEMERERH (1,181,237) (187,054) - -
(3,719,182) (331,961)  (2,432,891) -
5,115,778 1,132,082 853,009 -
Net provisional tax paid FEEMEHREEGRTE
relating to prior years (6,478,688) (6,541,395) (6,478,688) (6,541,395)
Tax recoverable AR EIFIR (1,362,910) (5,409,313)  (5,625,679) (6,541,395)
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:

15 REEE/BRNABHR (&)

() CEIECEHHEREERERE:

The Group The Company
TEH NN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B BB B B
Net deferred tax assets recognised MNEEBEXREHER
on the balance sheet 2RI E E (8,378,308)  (6,672,459) - =
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised REEEBRDER
on the balance sheet ZEEHAAE 161,190 165,186 148,242 148,242
(8,217,118) (6,507,273) 148,242 148,242
(i) The Group (i) KEE

The components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the

movements during the year are as follows:

FEBRGEEEABRTERRZELRE (BE)/ &

Depreciation

allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary

Deferred tax arising from: Tax loss HESBIEA  differences Total

BEZEEH: BEER REBHTE HMETER &&t

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B B B B

At 1 January 2009 %200941 18 (526,956) 1,955,959 (4,745,401)  (3,316,398)
Effect of changes in ARSI E

exchange rates (1,828) - (41,640) (43,468)
Charged/(credited) to ERAEE

profit or loss ek (GEA) 254,317 (1,974,321)  (1,427,403)  (3,147,407)

At 31 December 2009 2009412 831H (274,467) (18,362)  (6,214,444)  (6,507,273)

At 1 January 2010 201041818 (274,467) (18,362)  (6,214,444)  (6,507,273)
Effect of changes in ARgs o wE

exchange rates - - (172,834) (172,834)
Charged/(credited) to EmflskEE 2

profit or loss ek (GEA) 65,019 10,370 (1,612,400)  (1,537,011)

At 31 December 2010 7420106124318 (209,448) (7,992)  (7,999,678)  (8,217,118)
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(i) The Group (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised/reversed:

At 31 December 2010, the Group has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
HK$35,000 (2009: HK$1,080,000) as they are (i) subject
to the approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department; and/or (ii) it is not probable that future
taxable profits against which the losses can be utilised
will be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and entity.
The tax losses have no expiry date under the current
tax legislation.

At 31 December 2010, the Group has not reversed
insignificant deferred tax assets relating to temporary
differences of HK$Nil (2009: HK$168,750).

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:

At 31 December 2010, the Group has not recognised
insignificant deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of HK$281,370 (2009: HK$ Nil).

(ii) The Company

The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the balance sheet arise from depreciation allowances
in excess of the related depreciation. The movements
during the year are as follows:

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

15 REEE/BRNABHR (&)

() CEIECEHHEEERKE: (B)

(i) FEE (&)
RER /BB ZBRILEFIREE :

2010F 128318 + AEERE(()BEE BTG B E K
(i) R BEMETE 18 2R B 5 A FE i A1l T DA S AE R B 755 4 B I
[ERTRERB 2 HBEE - BRA BRI E 125 135,000
7C (20094 : 7% #1,080,0007T) 2 ELEFREE - BIE B
BIRLA © 2 AR RER TR 18 I & = m BARR -

R2010F12A31H ' AEERECTHEZEMAFE L ESA
FEZEERIEE EFELE (20097F : /& ¥168,750
JT) °

RERZELEHREERE

R2010F12A31H ' AEERECTHEZEMABRESEA

TR RN IE B EFE LB %281,3707T (20094 :
&) o

(i)  ARE]

AEERGREEARBETERRAZELEHRAEMNE
REREBTERRBEARBBENERLESH ZFHOT

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
At 1 January »™MA1H 148,242 2,153,992
Credited to profit or loss 1E5m Ml BB ET A > (2,005,750)
At 31 December MW12H31H 148,242 148,242
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(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE BALANCE SHEET

(continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised:
(continued)

(ii) The Company (continued)
Deferred tax assets not recognised:

At 31 December 2010, the Company has not recognised
deferred tax assets in respect of cumulative tax losses
of HK$Nil (2009: HK$1,045,000) as they are subject
to the approval of the Hong Kong Inland Revenue
Department.

Deferred tax liabilities not recognised:
At 31 December 2010, the Company has not recognised

insignificant deferred tax liabilities relating to temporary
differences of HK$281,370 (2009: HK$ Nil).

15 REEE/BRNABHR (&)

() CEIECEHHEEERKE: (B)

(i)  AA] (E)

RERZETERHBEE

R2010F12831H ' AR A ABREMEBALE T B
R EHBRGEIR ZIELEREE (20097F : B
1,045,0007T) ©

AERZELERARE :

7R2010F 128318 * AR elAEE =R M AR ERELER
B &L 4A1281,3707T (20094 : &) -

16 INVENTORIES 16 =&
The Group The Company
AEHE VNN

2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Raw materials R 80,692,022 61,369,822 1,009,559 1,236,991
Work in progress E o 44,722,167 36,181,987 - 36,037
Finished goods ERK — 4,861 = -
125,414,189 97,556,670 1,009,559 1,273,028
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(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

16 INVENTORIES (continued) 16 #®E #®)

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as FESE2OMCHRAERNT
an expense is as follows:

The Group
rEE
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEHEERME 865,200,621 735,551,489
Write down of inventories FERE 6,066,248 4,154,028
Reversal of write-down of inventories FERER # (2,408,352) (3,340,568)

868,858,517 736,364,949

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17 EBZRHEMERIRE

The Group The Company
rEE RKAFE

2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$

B JBEBE B JEME
Trade debtors B 5EBEA 170,034,253 120,654,173 166,294,041 113,549,372
Other debtors HEaEBEA 8,427,796 5,956,933 1,500,252 3,165,154
Deposits and prepayments 1 RTERIE 13,043,344 6,431,343 1,893,214 41,900

191,505,393 133,042,449 169,687,507 116,756,426

All of the trade and other receivables are expected to be  FTEE S K EAEWRBEBIHM FART KB SERSER -
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(continued)
(a) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are trade debtors

with the following ageing analysis as of the balance
sheet date:

17 ESZREMEWIRE (@)

(a) RO

REERBERGEEAEREZ RAMBYREREANE SER
AR Z BRI DOMTIAE -

The Group The Company
AEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
Current ZNHR 125,921,159 105,732,467 122,537,565 98,627,666
Less than 1 month past due BHADRE A 38,533,957 9,183,315 38,177,339 9,183,315
1 to 3 months past due B E A =3E A 5,363,793 4,120,383 5,363,793 4,120,383
More than 3 months but B HARAAS(E A 1B

less than 12 months past due Li12{E A 215,344 1,618,008 215,344 1,618,008
Amounts past due BHIS 44,113,094 14,921,706 43,756,476 14,921,706
170,034,253 120,654,173 166,294,041 113,549,372

Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days from the date
of billing. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are
set out in note 25(a).
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(continued)
(b) Trade debtors that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade debtors that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired
are as follows:

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

17 EZREMEWIRE (&)
(b) REBEZEZEBEBA

BHEBAZRERD TR AR DX ERERNT

The Group The Company
AEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$
Neither past due nor impaired 3% B 2a R (E 125,921,159 105,732,467 122,537,565 98,627,666
Less than 1 month past due B E LR E A 38,533,957 9,183,315 38,177,339 9,183,315
1 to 3 months past due B E A =3E A 5,363,793 4,120,383 5,363,793 4,120,383
More than 3 months but B HARAAS(E A 1B

less than 12 months past due Li12{E A 215,344 1,618,008 215,344 1,618,008
Amounts past due BHIS 44,113,094 14,921,706 43,756,476 14,921,706
170,034,253 120,654,173 166,294,041 113,549,372

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was
no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are considered fully recoverable. The Group
does not hold any collateral over these balances.

FEW AR IEDR B B A SORE R KR 0 B P 8 B RACER

ERSEKE A REN S B EEER AT AR
1588 - BRIBEER  ERERELEARYEREE
4 TR T A A T 2 B (31 P BASR 8 1 LR (B4 o
Ao B0 B A I S A E T B R R -
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

18 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 18 RekFALZFEEH
The Group The Company
rEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Bank deposits RITEEER 46,514,921 77,512,056 46,514,921 77,512,056
Cash at bank and in hand BTG RES 114,759,015 97,890,828 41,582,543 47,421,938
161,273,936 175,402,884 88,097,464 124,933,994
19 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 19 EFZRHEHMENRE
The Group The Company
TEE PN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B B
Trade creditors BHERA 141,854,188 84,174,595 113,953,716 63,936,629
Accrued charges and FENER K
other payables H &< BR IR 43,079,173 34,127,820 9,415,260 8,390,442
184,933,361 118,302,415 123,368,976 72,327,071

All of the trade and other payables are expected to FTEE S REMENEEMERNIN - REEBERLE
be settled within one year. Included in trade and other & H @ BFE 5 LK AMENERIER N E S EEA ZREKR D
payables are trade creditors with the following ageing #T2AF :

analysis as of the balance sheet date:

The Group The Company
AEE AT
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B JEE
Due within 1 month or 18 A AR Bigig Bk
on demand 131,263,153 81,688,175 105,865,522 63,386,440
Due after 1 month but 11& A 1218318 A K
within 3 months EIHR 9,848,378 1,764,805 8,008,632 550,189
Due after 3 months but 3 A% E12(E AR
within 12 months ES[pz 547,948 526,906 79,562 =
Due after 12 months 1216 A 12 1| 84 194,709 194,709 - -
141,854,188 84,174,595 113,953,716 63,936,629

100

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. F|EREXBR~

™
el



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

20 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS

The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the
Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The scheme is
administered by an independent trustee.

Under the MPF Scheme, each of the Group and the
eligible employees make monthly mandatory contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income
as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance. The mandatory contributions by each party
are subject to a maximum of HK$1,000 per month.
Contributions to the scheme vest immediately upon the
completion of service in the relevant service period.

In addition to the MPF Scheme, the employees of the
Group’s subsidiaries in Hong Kong, after completing
half a year of service, have the option to join the
Group’s defined contribution provident fund scheme
which is managed by an independent trustee. The
Group makes monthly contributions of 5% — 10% of the
employees’ basic salaries to the scheme depending
on the employees’ years of service with the Group.
The employees also make monthly contributions of
5% of the employees’ basic salaries to the scheme.
The employees are entitled to receive their entire
contributions together with accrued interest thereon
at any time upon leaving the Group, and 100% of the
employer’s contributions and the accrued interest upon
retirement or leaving the Group after completing sixteen
years of service or at a reducing scale of between
5% to 90% after completing three to fifteen years of
service. The forfeited contributions made by the Group
and related accrued interest can be used to reduce the
employer’s contributions. During the year, the aggregate
amount of employer’s contributions made by the Group
to this scheme was approximately HK$418,280 (2009:
HK$417,480) and there was no forfeited contributions
available to reduce the contributions payable by the
Group in future years. At 31 December 2010, the
Group’s contributions to the provident fund scheme and
the interest accrued thereon amounted to approximately
HK$13,105,000 (2009: HK$12,088,000).

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

20 EHFEHEERNKETE

AEEZEBERIEABES RO SRETERBIED
EEENREZ BB REBRIRTIEATESFE ([RES
) - ZRE A MBI ERESERE

RIBBEDEE - AKRBREASEREBDARE R
RIEDFTEGRAIZRTE  BAREEAREFE5%RRTE
TRFEIERR - BEF S ERDREBHIERTER B/ %K
pimat & - € ER LRSS AEK1,0007T - FAEH
IR AR fe B SR IR B o

brEilgfEertE AEBERSWBARE I ERAEE
TiemANERAR  AEERBNARNEBZEZBIYEEA
RIBBE R ESE - AEEKRETIFEREF SFT1R5%
Z10%EARFIMET - ME TR EH £:1H1R5%IEAE
THK - ZETERE 2B TR EE2E8 THX
BREAANERZFEFERE QR HEFEFR S o LITE
MTAESE  HAURE2HARER MIER=621
HFEE - ATREZ R RHERBIERE%EI%TE - B Tak
B2 Wz ArHREAE R BERM AR ZHER -
AEF G AR EE 2 54 7 #418,2807T (20094 : B
417,4807T0) ° ERF I8 A QI FEEF| B A 72 A S B 5K
FAIBR - R2010F 1231 B AEBYH RAELTEEL 2
MR A ERIFL) A7 113,105,0007T (20094F : jBH I
12,088,0007T) °
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

20 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION
RETIREMENT PLANS (continued)

At 31 December 2010, certain employees of the Group
had completed the required number of years of service
under the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the
“Ordinance”) and are eligible for long service payments
on termination of their employment. The Group is only
liable to make such payments when the termination
meets the required circumstances specified in the
Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not covered
by the aforesaid provident funds. At 31 December 2010,
the Group’s contributions to the provident funds and
the accrued interest thereon exceeded the potential
liabilities should the required circumstances specified
in the Ordinance be met.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate
in defined contribution retirement schemes covering its
full-time PRC employees. The schemes are administered
by the relevant government authorities in the PRC.
The Group and the PRC employees are required to
make contributions based on certain percentages of
the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government
authorities undertake to assume the retirement benefit
obligations of all existing and future retired employees
of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

21 BANKING FACILITIES

As at 31 December 2010, the Group had unsecured
revolving banking facilities of HK$60,150,000 (2009:
HK$60,150,000). The banking facilities include
documentary letters of credit, trust receipt, bill payables,
trade loans and trade guarantee. The amount utilised by
the Group as at 31 December 2010 under these facilities
was HK$45,871 (2009: HK$1,606,832).
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20 TEHEMFCEMAKEE (&)

f£2010F12H31H ' AEEMHHE IR FHE =
EHBEBEO (TEF]) ORE  THEABTERA
EZERRBE - AMERKIEECBET - XEEZA
NZHBBEEAZETINFSZERKETEXMERBRSE S
MZEEE - HATEFAILIEA 2 8 TafE: - AEBEE2010F
12A31 B ERAE ST EIR BT 2 KB L IMEAIRE 2 &
afE -

AEFBETENHERARTEATHEAZBE TRIR
RERET S o WA EIXPBEBFBBEMEE - AEE R
ETRRUFAEREERERFE L —EA D HIEHH
K MABRNAGEAEASBERENNEARZEER
BEAKERE T ZRARBRELE -

21 HRITEEEE

£2010F12A31H * AEEMFRTES 2 BERKFEE
¥ 2 4 &% %60,150,0007T (20094F : % #60,150,000
To) e RITZEEBENANEATL « EE8E - BANE
B B5ERRBESER- -AKBEREEEENABE
45,8717C (20094 : /&%1,606,8327T) °
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

22 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 whereby the directors of the
Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite
(i) directors, employees of any member of the Group or
any controlling shareholder of the Company (“Controlling
Shareholder”) or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; (ii) holder of any securities issued by any
member of the Group or any Controlling Shareholder of
the Company or any company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder; and (iii) (a) any business or joint venture
partner, contractor, agent or representative of, (b) any
supplier of goods or services to, or (c) any customer or
distributor of goods or service of, any member of the
Group or any Controlling Shareholder or a company
controlled by a Controlling Shareholder; to take up
options to subscribe for shares of the Company. A
nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is paid by these
participants for each lot of share options granted. The
options are exercisable from the date of grant within
a period of eight to ten years. Each option gives the
holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants that
existed during the year are as follows, whereby
all options are settled by physical delivery of

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

22 RERESURGHERIEFER

KRN ER2003F6 A6H R B EE KRR EEE
RERERER T ()VANEBEAIKE R FHARR T 2 28K
MR (TR PARER ) sl AT 2 AR ZEE - B
8 (VA AREBTRIKE - 12 0% A% 5 sl 12 A% A% 51 Fr e i
ZRARFMBEITZEMEEZ2EAA - Kii)(a) T 5K
BIERM  ABR  REEARK ; (b)) EMAE Mk RBH
FER : k() EMEBE Ry @ HASBEEMK S sz
R R Bk IR AR R B 2 E A A F - T FEBREREAA
AIIEAE - 2FALTUBBIT 2REBUINRES—HHE
faAE - BEIEITFHIR 2R H B HEF8E10F A - 1K
BT EHH AN ZEFREANR R —R I BARLAE -

(a) AEXFERTZERWNT @ FHEAABREER
RS2 BREE L -

shares:
Contractual
Number of life of options
instruments BRE
IEgE HNFH
Options granted to directors: BRERTES
—on 21 June 2005 — 1R2005F6 A21H 10,660,000 8 yearsfF
— on 30 June 2008 — 10200846 H30H 23,461,488 10 yearsf
— on 6 October 2009 — 1200910 H6H 18,901,488 10 yearsf
Options granted to employees: EREETES !
—on 21 June 2005 — 7R2005F6 A21H 6,371,000 8 yearsfF
— on 30 June 2008 — 7R200846 A30H 9,830,000 10 yearsF
— on 6 October 2009 — 7R2009F10H6H 16,085,000 10 yearsff
Options granted to other eligible persons: BERIER T4 B AL ¢
—on 21 June 2005 — 1200546 A21H 770,000 8 yearsf
— on 30 June 2008 — 1200846 H30H 6,095,000 10 yearsff
— on 6 October 2009 — 12009105 6H 4,400,000 10 yearsf
Total share options #R R AR 96,573,976
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

22 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices
of share options are as follows:

22 REZESUBRGCAERIER (&)

(b) BEREZHENRMEFOITEENT

2010 2009
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number exercise Number
price  of options price of options
g1 Bt InHEF 15 BB
THEE ZHE 17128 ZEE
HK$ 000 HK$ ’000
B TR B TR
Outstanding at the FYRITEE
beginning of the year 0.795 78,707 0.955 40,551
Granted during the year REEFRT - - 0.630 39,386
Exercised during the year REFITRE 0.700 (17,560) 0.630 (320)
Forfeited during the year REF KK 0.687 (880) 0.879 (910)
Outstanding at the end REFZIERITE
of the year 0.824 60,267 0.795 78,707
Exercisable at the end RNEEZIERAI1THE
of the year 0.824 60,267 0.795 78,707

The options outstanding at 31 December 2010 had an
exercise price of HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425
(2009: HK$0.630, HK$0.910 and HK$2.425) and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.7 years
(2009: 8.9 years).

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share
options granted is measured by reference to the fair
value of share options granted. The estimate of the fair
value of the share options granted is measured based on
a Black Scholes model. The contractual life of the share
option is used as an input into this model. Expectations
of early exercise are incorporated into the Black Scholes
model.
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22 EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions
(continued)

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

22 REZESURGCAERIER (&)

(c) BREZAFERRR (&)

BREZ AFERRR

Date of grant

RTAH
21 June 2005 30 June 2008 6 October 2009
2005%6H21H 2008%F6H30H 2009%1086H

Fair value at measurement date
Share price BB
Exercise price 1IE(E
Expected volatility (expressed as
weighted average volatility
used in the modelling under the
Black Scholes model)

Option life (expressed as weighted
average volatility used in the
modelling under the Black
Scholes model)

Expected dividends

Risk-free interest rate

RHRE
& [\ 1) R

KA ERBZATE

HK$0.3884/5 7T HK$0.13685/%5 7T HK$0.11295/87C

FREIKE (AEHEART
R E PR AR iR R R )

BREFH (ARHFREAEAT
R TE TR AR IR R R )

HK$2.4000/%5 7T  HK$0.90000/%7T HK$0.61000/% 7T
HK$2.4250/%8 70 HK$0.91000/87C HK$0.63000/% 7T
8.46% 36.94% 44.579%

2 yearsF 3 years®F 3 years®
6.80% 6.67% 8.20%

3.28% 2.87% 0.931%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining
life of the share options), adjusted for any expected
changes to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based on historical
dividends. Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.

ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁ(ﬁﬁkﬁzmﬁiﬂﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
H)E - UHRAREARASERTERB %K RO T E
@ﬁﬁﬁ% TEHIRR B IR AAE 2R EFTE - T ARKRK
HE 2B WA B HTEKEATE -

BB 2 B BT A A SR R
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(REEEREN - HUBTIIR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of equity

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated

23 EBEXR - #HERRE
(a) HEEEDOHED

AEBGAEDRNE
B BN A

[ 4B A #B £0 # HA 470 0 HA R 4 5 10
AR o TREHIARFHERI A

equity is set out in the consolidated statement of changes ~ AX B3 F ¥ EF R M LB 1F -
in equity. Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the beginning
and the end of the year are set out below:
The Company ARAHE
Share Share Retained Capital Total
capital premium earnings reserve equity
R RAEE BEEF ERGE AR
Note HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
izt BE B B Vit B
At 1 January 2009 R2009F1A81R 196,932,442 179,749,234 35,435,236 5,430,367 417,547,279
Changes in equity for 2009:  2009F 25 :
Dividends approved in respect  EEHERE
of the previous year 23(b) - - (19,693,244) - (19,693,244)
Shares issued under share BRECET KRG
option scheme
- gross proceeds — El 160,000 41,600 - - 201,600
- transfer from capital reserve  — AR EEY - 36,144 - (36,144) =
Equity-settled share-based BB
transactions BEMIEE - - - 2,368,109 2,368,109
Cancellation of share options ~ FUKEERIE = = = (104,006) (104,006)
Profit and total comprehensive ~ ANEZREUz R
income for the year - - 11,597,651 - 11,597,651
At 31 December 2009 and R20095128318 R
1 January 2010 201051A1H 197,092,442 179,826,978 27,339,643 7,658,326 411,917,389
Changes in equity for 2010:  2010#Ez 2% :
Dividends approved in BERE
respect of the
- previous year —FF 23(b) - - (16,329,458) - (16,329,458)
- current year — K 23(b) - - (8,166,129) - (8,166,129)
Shares issued under share BiriED 2112k
option scheme
— gross proceeds —EhE 8,780,188 3,508,938 - - 12,289,126
- transfer from capital reserve  — HEAFEEER - 1,669,281 - (1,669,281) -
Profit and total comprehensive ~ AF2E NG ARE
income for the year - - 17,624,230 - 17,624,230
At 31 December 2010 ®2010F12A31H 205,872,630 185,005,197 20,468,286 5,989,045 417,335,158

106  RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. FIRE 245/ A

A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE M BRRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 23 EXFX - #ERRE (#®)
DIVIDENDS (continued)
(b) Dividends (b) RE
(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i) RFEEENRE ELR L TR R fE NS
Company attributable to the year
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Interim dividend declared and paid of BEEf RIKE 2 RS
2 HK cents per ordinary share BT AEARBE 210
(2009: Nil HK cent per ordinary share) (20094 : B EBIEEZ() 8,166,129 -
Final dividend proposed after the NEEBBRXREEBEER
balance sheet date of 4 HK cents RERRR & %jtz_ﬂxﬁ%ﬂ%ﬂh
per ordinary share (2009¢ C BIRE R 4L)
(2009: 4 HK cents per ordinary share) 16,469,810 15,767,395
24,635,939 15,767,395
The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet NREAEBBERGEERAEZEMREAHRENEEARE

R

date has not been recognised in liabilities at the balance
sheet date.

FHARERRAR -

(i) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the (i)  REFEENIRE RN TR fENL R EARFER
Company attributable to the previous financial HER ST
year, approved and paid during the year
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Final dividend in respect of the previous TFEERMEERFEDHAER
financial year, approved and paid during X EIR T B S 4L
the year, of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (20094 : &% A EES()
(2009: 5 HK cents per ordinary share) 16,329,458 19,693,244
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

23 EBEXR- BERRE (@)

(c) KR

(i) EZEREEITRE

2010 2009
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HK$
REHE B [EsE B
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.50 each & /B T AL @A 1,000,000,000 500,000,000 1,000,000,000 500,000,000
Ordinary shares, issued and AR CRTRARE:
fully paid:
At 1 January ™M A1H 394,184,884 197,092,442 393,864,884 196,932,442
Share issued under share BREET 2 RG
option scheme 17,560,376 8,780,188 320,000 160,000
At 31 December W12 A31H 411,745,260 205,872,630 394,184,884 197,092,442

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled
to one vote per share at meetings of the Company.
All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to the
Company’s residual assets.

(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2010, options
exercised resulted in 17,560,376 (2009: 320,000)
ordinary shares being issued, with exercised proceeds
of HK$12,289,126 (2009: HK$201,600). The related
weighted average share price at the time of exercise
was HK$0.88 (2009: HK$0.63).
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(i)  FERBEZEITZKG

B E2010F12A8IBFE I RAR B LABEBEK
12,289,1267T (20094F : /& ®201,6007T) 17 15 B8 A% 4 I8
H17,560,376% & 3@ % (20094 : 320,0000% & /@ %) o
17 55 B Y N4 35 (B & 78 #0.887T (20094F : 75 #0.63
JL) °



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRNE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (continued)

(iii)  Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at balance sheet date

(BREBEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)

23 EBEXR- #FERRE @)

(c) m=A&(&E)
(i) REEREBXREEHZARDBRARTIEHERE

Exercise period

TES

21 June 2005 to

20056 H21HE

5 June 2013 20136 A5H
30 June 2008 to 20086 A30H =

29 June 2018 201846 A29H
6 October 2009 to 200910 H6H =

5 October 2019 2019F10A5H

Exercise 2010 2009
price Number Number
TEE yE HeE
HK$2.425 1,215,000 1,215,000
HK$0.910 33,967,600 38,526,488
HK$0.630 25,085,000 38,966,488
60,267,600 78,707,976

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one
ordinary share in the Company. Further details of these
options are set out in note 22.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Share premium reserve

The application of the share premium account is
governed by Section 48B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the consolidated
financial statements of foreign operations. The reserve
is dealt with in accordance with accounting policies set
out in note 2(p).

REANBRENE—RERERB-—RAQALER - 5
ERREF RN AT BREMT22 -

(d) REZHEEREDN

(i) R 5 1B (7 1

BB LAIGDIE48HBEEMEA 2R EERE -

(i) PER

[E R R BRREK A BLBINERS 2 M TS M SMITE 3 =
£ o HEREAN ST BRI E2(p)EE -
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)
(iii)  Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company and other
eligible persons recognised in the accordance with the
accounting policy adopted for share-based payments in
note 2(1) (ii).

(iv)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries,
which are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required
to allocate at least 10% of their after-tax profit but
before dividend distribution to general reserve until the
reserve has reached 50% of their registered capital. The
general reserve can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset accumulated losses or
increase capital. Appropriation to general reserve during
the year amounted to approximately HK$352,575 (2009:
HK$350,473).

(e) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2010, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$20,468,286 (2009: HK$27,339,643).
After the balance sheet date the directors proposed a
final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share (2009:
a final dividend of 4 HK cents per ordinary share)
amounting to HK$16,469,810 (2009: final dividend of
HK$15,767,395). This dividend has not been recognised
as a liability at the balance sheet date.
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(d) RFEZHEEREW (E)
(i) B fEE

B 8 B TR AR IR & At BUR BT A 2(1) (i) BR 4R DA B AR A 2L
RYAAEENEMABEBALTZEERMEFRITEER
RBEN N FERER

(iv) FEVLER

KBREAREMBEZEZEZRREEHEE 2 ERK - AEE
ZHENBARBIIEBEELE BARRD10%D 2 FHiiE
BASMEEBREE  EEZREBETMELRNS50%E
IF - TBEFEERALEERE BDILERNIKEREEEN L
MER - REEHEE L BRHEEBZEREALN AHE352,575
70 (20094 : &#350,4737T) °

(e) WoEHE

R2010F12A31B 25 AI DK TARARRR 2 HiE S5
575 #20,468,2867T (20094 : 7 #27,339,6437T) ° A
BEABEXRGEERRE  EFERIERAMEERETABRS
#afll (20094 : REABBREBIRAB®EAL) - 6B E
16,469,8107T (20094 : K H B &5 #15,767,3957T) °
REEEBREEREERBAERLERE -
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23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with
the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
judgements to the capital structure in light of changes in
economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables)
plus unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital
comprises all components of equity less unaccrued
proposed dividends.

During 2010, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged
from 2009, was to maintain the net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio of no more than 41% (2009: 29%). In order
to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

(BREBEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)

23 EX-#HERKRE (&)

(f) EXEE

FEBZERABREERAANREBAEEMEELE 6
7 AEERERERRRERE R AEMABA LR
Mg - AE (B RIERERIKF A Z A8 I IRHS R A& A
ALz BREST -

AEEEH R TR EERNEBUERSRRE R - &
REEANPNHRNEE RRE RN FE - RELERS
T EH S B AN B & D B8 2 HIE -

HITRE - AEESNUFEEHKEABRER LR
SEEERHEANRE - pilt - AREZRRE (BEE
%&/H@J*HEEIE&EMQTESE%%)JJDTJ*.:H%ML’E?"HX
B RAREABIEMEEDR T RBRERE -

&

R20104F © AEE Z R M2009F — 1% RAEFHFA
& B2 5 B AR AN A9 L B N B 841% (20094 : 29%) ° & T
,%‘E%jznﬂﬁtwu NEE Al B éﬂ%ﬁ%i}f&ﬁ%ﬂ&%Z%% .
BATHRR PEARFRRE EEF o EEMEXTES
%DA?@ZQ\T,\IE 0

i3
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(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

23 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(f) Capital management (continued)

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December

23 EBEXR- BERRE (@)

() EBEXEEE)

720104 2009F12 31 H 2 /% & (& AL AR A B B

2010 and 2009 was as follows: FanT
The Group The Company
~EE ¥ /N

2010 2009 2010 2009

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Current liabilities: TEEE:
Trade and other payables B 5 hEMmEMNKIE 184,933,361 118,302,415 123,368,976 72,327,071
Add: Proposed dividends i Bk RS 16,469,810 15,767,395 16,469,810 15,767,395
Net debt BEFE 201,403,171 134,069,810 139,838,786 88,094,466
Total equity miEs 511,554,523 485,804,246 417,335,158 411,917,389
Less: Proposed dividends W ERIRERE (16,469,810) (15,767,395) (16,469,810) (15,767,395)
Adjusted capital PRS2 iN 495,084,713 470,036,851 400,865,348 396,149,994
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio ¥ & {5 2 72 A% AN 7 £ 171 41% 29% 35% 22%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

24 COMMITMENTS 24 EiE
(a)  Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December (a) M2010F12 431 B PR E LG IREBENRTER
2010 not provided for in the consolidated financial AEPEWNT
statements were as follows:
The Group The Company
AEE RAF]
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Contracted for: B2
— Construction work —EETE 16,459 55,122 - -
— Purchase of equipment - BEXERER
and moulds 7,411,473 1,157,699 - -
7,427,932 1,212,821 - —
Authorised but not BHUEBERERY
contracted for:
— Capital injection into a —FTEERBAA
subsidiary - 46,500,000 - 46,500,000
7,427,932 47,712,821 - 46,500,000

(b) At 31 December 2010, the total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are payable as follows:

(b) 2010 12AH318 - ERNTARBCL&LHAEM
RARREZ Az ELEENT

The Group The Company
A% AN
2010 2009 2010 2009
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Within 1 year 1A = = 240,000 240,000

The Company was the lessee in respect of a property
held under operating leases. The leases typically run for
an initial period of one year, with an option to renew the
leases at which time all terms were renegotiated. The
leases do not include any contingent rentals.

BREMBEE  ARRSLHEEREZYENAR - HOD
BEEMHAZEF  BAREENHEOSBESIHEERNK -
MO BREMSAES
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(REEEREN - HUBTIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and foreign
currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group’s
business. The Group’s exposure to risks and the financial
risk management policies and practices used by the
Group to manage these risks are described below.

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to cash
and cash equivalents and trade debtors. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset in the balance sheet.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
are deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and
the PRC. The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the
majority of counterparties are financial institutions with
high credit ratings assigned by international credit rating
agencies or stated-controlled financial institutions with
good reputations.

In respect of trade debtors, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus
on the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Trade debtors are due within 30 to 90 days
from the date of billing. Normally, the Group and the
Company does not obtain collateral from customers.
Consequently, management considers the aggregate
risks arising from the possibility of credit losses are
limited and to be acceptable.
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(a) FERBEETERR

AEENEERRIZRERESMREFERERESE
BA - RREERBZELZIINEERBRTERIE
BEREE -

AEEEERERREEFEHE " REINGEERTIZE
BRTESREE SE2RPUEZEERBREFRERAX
ZHEFUNHRERREETFERBIREERTZNE
g R BRI 2 RIFEENTSHE -

HEZBEHAME EEEERMENEEREK X EFE
EEMAZNERERR - HNMAEERBEE TEEESHE
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(@) Credit risk and concentration risk
(continued)

The Group’s and the Company’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry
and country in which customers operate also have
an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company
have a certain concentration of credit risk as 26%
(2009: 23%) and 27% (2009: 24%); and 75% (2009:
71%) and 76% (2009: 75%) of the trade debtors was
due from the largest customer and the five largest
customers respectively. Management does not expect
any significant losses from trade debtors that have not
been provided for other than the impairment loss on bad
and doubtful debt as set out in note 17.

(b)  Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to
ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short
and longer term.

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

25 BI¥REREERAFE (8

(a) FERBRREEPERR (B

AEBRARGBFARZEERR  FEXZEEF Z@E5
BEMPE BEFEEMEZTERBR ZBERR I
ZEERR  EXERERL  c REER  AEBRAR
AINAREFHE S EFAFIE26% (20094 : 23%) &
27% (2009%F : 24%) i MN75% (20094F : 71%) K76%
(2009%F : 75%) ' MAX —TERENEEETERR - &
BETPEESEBATEEANERNBENSBEHR TE
BIsE179 2 SRR E 1 -

(b) ETRBUEE

AEEET2ENXGERESESERTEERAT - &
RERRSBRRERENERARNREFER - XEE
ZBRBERERRE RFARRBIER K - AEREE
HEARSHERAINFEHEZER 2 ES - WESHEH
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 25 HEERBEERAFRE @
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) E&REBMERERE (8)

The following table details the remaining contractual THF|IHAEBRAATZIETELSREBENREERY
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s M TAXHAREE - EE2ERAY FHEAME Y HS R
and the Company’s financial liabilities which are based (BREBEATEZRER KM 2 REHEREET

on the contractual undiscounted cash flows (including HESHNE) RAERRAATNSEEEE %Y At
interest payments, computed using contractual rates or, o

if floating, based on rates current at the balance sheet

date) and the earliest date the Group and the Company

can be required to pay:

(i) The Group (i) rEE
2010 2009
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow or on cash flow oron

Carrying  @3HEREH demand Carrying  #BEH1REH demand
amount WRERER AR amount  HVRBEE  6EAAR
EHE ZBRER  EREIH REE ZBRER  ERERE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BEFT BEFT BETFT BT BT BT

Trade and other payables 25 R HE IR 184,933 184,933 184,933 118,302 118,302 118,302
(i) The Company (i)  ARE]
2010 2009
Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron

Carrying  @EREHN demand Carrying  BEHEAH demand
amount  MEAHR 618 A amount  K)RAHH 618 AR5k
FHE ZESR  ERENE BREE BT ERERE
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BT

Trade and other payables B 5 REAMEAERE 123,369 123,369 123,369 72,327 72,327 72,327
Amounts due to subsidiaries  ERI{B A EIBR I 26,761 26,761 26,761 25,253 25,253 25,253
150,130 150,130 150,130 97,580 97,580 97,580

In order to manage the liquidity demands above, BHKFEIE Ll &SRB F K 1K2010F128318 -
at 31 December 2010, HK$161,273,936 (2009: AEENARRDRFEAIKZMEIR 2R S BB
HK$175,402,884) and HK$88,097,464 (2009: 161,273,936 T (20094 : & #175,402,88470) K /B
HK$124,933,994) of the Group’s and the Company’s 88,097,464 T (20094 : /%#124,933,9947T) °

assets respectively were held as cash that is considered

readily realisable.
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)
(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate risk arises
primarily from cash and cash equivalents which were
contracted at short-term variable rates and expose the
Group and the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s and the Company’s interest rate profile as
monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

(i) Interest rate risk

(BREBEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)

25 HEERBREERAFRE @
(c) F=EERR

REBRARRZHNERERE BB ERRFBF R 2H
ERREFERBMSIE  SIBAKERARBERDR
BEHNXRER - AEBEARRZFERAEREEEEL
AT -

(i) FEmRE

The Group The Company
A48 07
2010 2009 2010 2009

Effective Effective Effective Effective

interest interest interest interest

rate rate rate rate

YRS ERFI= BERA= ERFI=
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
% BEFT % BETT % BETT % BETT
Variable rate bank deposits 31T HFFUZE 0.6 157,988 0.4 171,951 0.2 84,946 0.2 121,673

(i) Sensitivity analysis (i) BERESIT

At 31 December 2010, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant, would
increase/decrease the Group’s and the Company’s
profit after tax and retained profits by approximately
HK$1,419,000 (2009: HK$1,641,000) and HK$849,000
(2009: HK$1,217,000) respectively. Other components of
equity would not be affected (2009: HK$Nil) by changes
in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date. The
analysis is performed on the same basis for 2009.

R2010F12 A1 BEFMB HME (LR ZH#F T ENBR
T et — MR R R AR 1002 T 0 155 Bl
mn/ RO AEERANARZBRBEEFBERADEFNBL S
7175 #1,419,0007T (20094 : & ®1,641,0007T) K&
849,000 T (20094 : /& #1,217,0007T) o £ b4 25 #5 T
SR REFFE (2009F : BEZT) ©

WERMBRESMEBRENESHERNEEHEEME
o WERBRERZBFTEERBITERETET BT
B ZF=E - 1002 FIEMSRVIEEERBEHEE T~ —
BEEEERBE A XRAI GBS E 25T H - DTk
20095F HH[Rl 2 B AEHETT ©
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(REEEAEN - HUBTIIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk
(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated
in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving
rise to this risk are primarily United States Dollar and
British Pound.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held
in currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures
that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by
buying or selling foreign currencies at spot rates where
necessary to address short-term imbalances.

(iii)  The following table details the Group’s and the
Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date
to currency risk arising from recognised assets or
liabilities denominated in a currency other than
the functional currency of the entity to which they

25 BI¥EREERAFE (&)

(d) SRR
() IEXZ

AEEEBHRNUAZFREXHNEEBUIN 2 EHIIE
WA HMAAEINERK - BRKERERR 2 E¥E

(i) EREZEEREE

ERNERZYEEREUNIINZEBRHRB2HEMEZRIN
ENFIE  AEEe T RRMAEHN N FER - ARE
EXBEARBHINE  BERFIZESHEFE BRI
BE -

(iii)  TRIRAEERARBRNER BRB KRk
RUANBEEB AN —EERIIENEELAEBM
AHHNERER °

relate.
The Group The Company
r58E NG
2010 2009 2010 2009

United United United United
States British States British States British States British
Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds Dollars Pounds
ESH %3 e i3 Ey 3 X 54
000 '000 '000 '000 '000 000 '000 '000
i T# T T# r T# YA T
Trade and other receivables ESREMERER 19,462 1,394 14,276 359 19,250 1,394 14,276 359
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBEeSEERE 10,936 2 15,420 4 10,936 2 15,420 4
Trade and other payables B REMENEE  (5,868) (55)  (3,644) - (5,868) (55)  (3,644) -
Amounts due from subsidiaries ~ [EMHI BRI - - - - 8,358 - 2,687 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries NS = - - - (246) - (67) -

Net exposure arising from HBACEER

recognised assets and liabiliies & BT EIFE 24,530 1,341 26,052 363 32,430 1,341 28,672 363
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(BREBEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)

25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change

25
(d) &R (8)
(iv) BERE ST

TREEBEAEERARER

4EE

A

MBRBEERAFE (#)

B P& B KRR 2 R

in the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax and 2 & I8 7] 52 &4 B) i fr 10 18 5 18 I R B8 B R3S i 2 #E 49
retained earnings in response to reasonably possible &)
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the
Group and the Company have significant exposure at
the balance sheet date.
The Group The Company
AEE NG
2010 2009 2010 2009
Effect on Effect on Effect on Effect on
Increase/ profit after  Increase/  loss after  Increase/ profit after  Increase/ loss after
(decrease)  taxand  (decrease) taxand (decrease)  taxand (decrease) tax and
in foreign retained i foreign retained  in foreign retained  in foreign retained
exchange profits  exchange profits  exchange profits  exchange profits
rate  HERHZ rate  HR% rate  HEHEZ rate  HR%
Exign/ RARGE EXgn/ BERRE Ex#h/ BARRE EXN/ BERRE
(W) BRz%E (R) BAZFE (H) BRz%E (id) BHzZE
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$7000
V-t B¥TT BRI BETT
United States Dollars e 5% 7,939 5% 8,430 5% 10,495 5% 9,278
(5%) (7,939) (5%) (8,430) (5%) (10,495) (5%) (9,278)
British Pounds fi3 5% 701 5% 172 5% 701 5% 172
(5%) (701) (5%) (172) (5%) (701) (5%) (172)
The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming SRE ST JIERBREREFHREE HEBAE - WEANRAD

that the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at
the balance sheet date and applied to the Company and
each of the Group entities’ exposure to currency risk for
non-derivative financial instruments in existence at that
date, and that all other variables, in particular interest
rates, remain constant.

= A

ANEESERS
ZERRER - mArEEMmA]

“=4

RN BN EEZIFITES R T AMER
HE CLEAMEK) REFAE -
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25 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (continued)
(iv)  Sensitivity analysis (continued)

The stated changes represent management’s assessment
of reasonably possible changes in foreign exchange
rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet
date. In this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate
between the Hong Kong Dollar and the United States
Dollar would be materially unaffected by any changes in
movement in value of the United States Dollar against
other currencies. Results of the analysis as presented
in the above table represent an aggregation of the
effects on each of the Company and the Group entities’
loss after tax and equity measured in the respective
functional currencies, translated into Hong Kong Dollar
at the exchange rate ruling as at the balance sheet date
for presentation purposes. The analysis is performed on
the same basis for 2009.

(e) Fair values
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair value as at 31

December 2010 and 2009.

26 CONTINGENT ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2010 and 2009, the Group and the
Company had no contingent assets and or liabilities.
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FEflzEeEEEERATERRNEET —EFEEHEA
IRz A AR S - Bl - BRETARTZHAE
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27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the
Group represents amounts paid to the Company’s
chairman and executive directors as disclosed in note
8.

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

27 BBMAEZERXRZRER

(a) EEEEBEBAESME

SETEEERASHSBRIN AR ARNITESKIE
BIMEE

2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Short-term employee benefits iR EEF 6,897,458 6,663,861
Post-employment benefits BIEFREF 303,000 298,000
Share-based payments LARR (D BER T = 1,355,580
7,200,458 8,317,441
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (see note A% Ei &5 B TR AN A H5E6(a) °
6(a)).
(b) Other related party transactions (b) HEEHKSHEE
During the year ended 31 December 2010, the Group 72010512 A31H 1 » AEBEEBH T EUTRS
entered into the following material related party
transactions:
The Group
REH
2010 2009
HK$ HK$
Rental income from a related RE R 2 e
company (note 5) WA (H:E5) 180,000 240,000
Secretarial fees paid to a related SRR R E
company & H 198,000 264,000
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(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

27 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(continued)

(b) Other related party transactions
(continued)

Rental income is received from and secretarial fees are
paid to a related company, in which Dr. Wong, Philip Kin
Hang, and Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho, have beneficial
interests. Dr. Wong, Philip Kin Hang is a director of the
Company and Mr. Wong, Kennedy Ying Ho is a close
family member of certain directors of the Company.

Balances with related parties are disclosed in the
balance sheets and in notes 13 and 14.

28 POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note
23(b).

29 COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the application of the amendment to
HKAS 17, Leases, certain comparative figures have
been adjusted to conform to current year’s presentation
and to provide comparative amounts in respect of items
disclosed for the first time in 2010. Further details of
these developments are disclosed in note 3.
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30 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The methods, estimates and judgements the directors
used in applying the Group’s accounting policies have a
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
operating results. Some of the accounting policies require
the Group to apply estimates and judgements, on matters
that are inherently uncertain. The critical accounting
judgements in applying the Group’s accounting policies
are described below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis or reducing balance basis over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually
the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any.
The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous
estimation.

(b) Impairments

In considering the impairment loss that may be required
for certain property, plant and equipment, investments in
subsidiaries and interests in associates, the recoverable
amount of the asset needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and the value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely
the selling price because quoted market prices for the
assets may not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated by the asset
are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to items such as level of
turnover and amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining an amount
that is a reasonable approximation of the recoverable
amount, including estimates based on reasonable and
supportable assumptions and projections of items such
as turnover and operating costs.

(BREBEAEIN » HEEBTHIR)

30 =EEH{EET R E

ESERARAKE 2T ERRNITAL - BERABEAE
BHMBMAREEREEEATE - RESHBOREX
AEEEAG RABETEE S L - BREHERE
REARSEZ ST BRRFIOT

(a) #HE

Bl & B B A S BB R4 EE R 31 T (5 I 1
8 - MASERESSERNEREEENTERED
PRI BN - KRG ERTSARBEGARTNE
KEHE TR -

(b) RE

ZRIETYE  BELRE RHBRRZKRE R
BREzERMELRNERR  AEETEEZAIKEE
HomNOeERFEEREREEMNEZERSE - B
WEEEZFRME TR SR - B EME M (T
EE EETEAEER  BEMELCBHYRERET
FREHRAEE MARLERBERFEREERATEE
HEEHEZNG - ARBEETSRREAMEE SN
BZER MeEB/ATKEESEIAERMOESHE  8ER
BAERAEXBZBRRRBABEMERBEREERAE
fhET 2R
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(BREHEAESIN  HEBTIIR)

30 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b) Impairments (continued)

Impairment losses for bad and doubtful debts are
assessed and provided based on the directors’ regular
review of the ageing analysis and an evaluation of
collectability. A considerable level of judgement is
exercised by the directors when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer.

An increase or decrease in the above impairment loss
would affect the operating results in the year and in
future years.

(c) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions
is reconsidered periodically to take into account all
changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available
against which the unused tax credit can be utilised,
consequently management’s judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’'s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if it
becomes probable that future taxable profits will allow
the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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30 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(d) Inventory provision

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged inventories
analyses, projections of expected future saleability of
goods and management experience and judgement.
Based on these reviews, write-down of inventories will
be made when the carrying amounts of inventories
fall below their estimated net realisable value. Due to
changes in customers’ performance, actual saleability of
goods may be different from estimates and profit or loss
could be affected by differences from estimates.

(e) Share-based payments

The estimate of the fair value of the share options granted
to employees and other eligible persons measured by
professional valuers based on the Black Scholes model
with modifications to reflect the impact of vesting periods
and exercise patterns on the option value. The accuracy
of the above estimates could affect the amount of share-
based payments transactions recognised in the income
statement.

(BREHEAEIN - HEEBTHIR)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

REMBRRWE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(BREHEAESIN - HEBTIIR)

31 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements,
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective
for the year ended 31 December 2010 and which have
not been adopted in these financial statements. Of
these developments, the following relate to matters that
may be relevant to the Group’s operations and financial
statements:

31 #HZE2010F12A831HLLFECHEMERXR
EMZEE] HEIARREZEERE

HEUHSUKRERTEZH  BSESHMASEBMHZIE
1857 « FERA RZE - EEZER2010F12H318 ELFE
MARER - BAARR I ET FERTIRN o EELEEXH -
AT RAIEEEASRE 2 & & R HmE

Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after

HKAS 24 (Revised),
Related party disclosures

Improvements to HKFRSs (2010) BB

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

The directors have confirmed that the Group is in
the process of making an assessment of what the
impact of these amendments, new standards and new
interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial
application. So far it has concluded that their adoption
is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s
results or financial position.
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Five Years Financial Summary
IFUBERE

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENTS melEER
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
BETFT BETT EETT  EETFTT  BETFa
Continuing operations BEREER
Turnover L 954,572 842,856 724,191 817,000 966,564
Profit/(loss) before taxation and Fr#i Mt R4E 5| B 82
share of losses of associates  {5Ht4 A 7] E1EA]
/(1) 51,552 (1,217)  (30,619) 7,983 37,104
Share of losses of associates P/t Bt <D &8 (1,137)  (52,868) - - -
Profit/(loss) before taxation BREATEF (E18) 50,415 (54,085) (30,619) 7,983 37,104
Income tax (expense)/credit AR (Zi),/FtA (5,567) 8,591 10,329 (23) (7,312)
Profit/(loss) from continuing BEREER Y
operations wA /(1) 44,848 (45,494) (20,290) 7,960 29,792
Discontinued operations BARIEREER
Profit from discontinued BERIEREER
operations, net of tax B 18w Al 3,386 - - - -
Profit/(loss) for the year and NEERH (EE)
attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company 48,234 (45,494) (20,290) 7,960 29,792
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Five Years Financial Summary

EIFUBRE

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET mEEEAEBR
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BEFrr  BEFr E¥FrT BEFr BETFT
Property, plant and equipment ~ ¥13 « BE MR 193,076 183,256 175,207 177,426 200,107
Interests in leasehold land BEEEHEREERZ
held for own use under TR
operating leases 9,831 10,238 10,405 10,112 10,000
Interests in associates NG ey 52,868 = = = =
Deferred tax assets BEEHIBEE 100 4,223 5,727 6,672 8,378
Net current assets MBI EFE 475,055 399,466 300,997 291,759 293,231
Deferred tax liabilities EXFIBEE (8,810) (3,313) (2,411) (165) (161)
Net assets BEFE 722,120 593,870 489,925 485,804 511,555
Share capital [N 196,932 196,932 196,932 197,092 205,873
Reserves i 525,188 396,938 292,993 288,712 305,682
Total equity attributable to ARAEIREEGRER
equity shareholders
of the Company 722,120 593,870 489,925 485,804 511,555

As a result of adoption of amendment to Hong Kong
Accounting Standard 17, Leases, during the year ended
31 December 2010, an amount of HK$3,873,990 was
reclassified from leasehold land held for own use under
operating leases to property, plant and equipment as at
1 January 2010. The financial information for 2006 to
2009 as presented in this five years financial summary
has been restated accordingly.
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